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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERFORMANCE

Our Group's turnover increased from approximately HK$633.6
million in 2017 to approximately HK$766.0 million in 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 20.9%. Gross profit
was approximately HK$178.9 million in 2018, representing an
increase of approximately 46.5% from that of 2017. Profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$58.4 million in 2018, representing an increase
of approximately 140.3% from that of 2017. Increase in net
profit was primarily due to the increase in sales orders resulting
from the improvement and optimization of production facilities,
which had a positive impact on the Group's sales. At the same
time, it has benefited from economies of scale in terms of
increased production.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group has been engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
printed circuit boards (“PCB(s)") for nearly three decades, and
witnessed industrial transformations at different stages. Despite
political factors troubling the electronic and PCB sectors in 2018,
the Group continued to increase its sales steadily, which was
attributed to the early sales strategy formulated by the Company
and its expansion preparation, which greatly enhanced
production automation, and improved the production capacity
and quality, resulting a highest sales record and even
highlighting the profitability due to economies of scale.

Nonetheless, the PCB sector continues to face various
uncertainties in the future, as the economic development across
the globe is adversely affected by various factors, including
President Trump’s America First policy, the suppression of
Chinese electronics enterprises, the Brexit plan, and multiple
geopolitical tensions.

Over the years, costs of raw materials for PCBs have been rising,
despite a slower pace in 2018, coupled with fierce competition
among peers, as well as irrational pricing competition, the
product price became even lower, further weakening the
profitability of the enterprises.

Despite various unstable factors lurking around in this real and
tremendous PCB market, the PCBs continue to enjoy extensive
applications, which cover 3C products, Internet-of-Things, self-
driving vehicles, big data, automotive electronization and
electrification, and more. The development of every application
will drive the demand for PCBs. In particular, the application of
5G technology and the development of electrical vehicles will
require a massive supply of PCBs, ushering in a wonderful
business opportunity.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our
staff for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our
Group's development. | would also like to thank all of our
shareholders, for their trust and continuous support over a
challenging but rewarding 2018.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Chan Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

Results

E45

Revenue Uz

Profit before tax B B B s A

Profit attributable to ordinary equity AARIERERFTAA
holders of the Company JE 35 FI

Basic earnings per share BREARZF
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AFRBENZIR)

Diluted earnings per share SREEZF

(expressed in HK cents per share)
Dividend per share
(expressed in HK cents per share)

(REBIEILZIR)
RS
(AZRBOEILZIR)

Financial Position

B %R

Total assets

Net debts (excluding cash and bank
balances, pledged deposits and
restricted cash)

BERE
FEH(TERERER
RITHEER - CHER

TR R ZREIEE)

Shareholders’ equity IR R 2
Net assets per share BREETE
(expressed in HK$ per share) (AFRETIIR)
Net debts to total assets FEBHEERE
Net debts to shareholders’ equity FEBE R =
6 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2018
—B-N\%

HK$'000
FHBxT

766,006
81,550

58,393
HK24.3 cents
A

HK24.3 cents
AL

HK6.0 cents
AL

2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
FHBxT

939,135

12,041
511,653

2.13
1.3%

2017 Change
% 28
HK$'000 (%)
FHT
633,572 20.9
29,246 178.8
24,275 140.5
HK10.1 cents
il 140.6
HK10.1 cents
Bl 140.6
Nil N/A
= TEA
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+-—H
2017 Change
—E—tF 28
HK$'000 (%)
FHT
888,256 57
85,726 (86.0)
480,420 6.5
2.00 6.5
9.7% (86.6)
17.8% (86.5)

2.4%




Financial Summary

M=

in HK$'000

FET

RESULTS EF
Revenue g

Profit before tax B BT
Income tax expense FrSfimA X
Profit for the year FREF

in HK$'000

FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &BERERE
Total assets BERLE
Total liabilities BEBTE
Net assets BESE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014

ZE—+F ZT—RF ZET—hF ZZ—HEF

766,006 633,572 591,407 638,930 663,566
81,550 29,246 30,413 49,724 50,857
(23,157) (4,971) (7,030) (7,311) (6,649)
58,393 24,275 23,383 42,413 44,208

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+-—H

2017 2016 2015 2014

—F—+F ZE—RF E—RHF —ET—NEOF

939,135 888,256 829,988 863,581 772,814
427,482 407,836 408,159 434,797 354,640
511,653 480,420 421,829 428,784 418,174
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The printed circuit board, also known as “PCB”, is mainly
comprised of insulation base materials and conductors. PCBs,
which support and connect electronic devices as they provide
connection between electric components, are components
required to combine a majority of electronic devices with
electronics, machines, and chemical materials. They are also
given the name of “the mother of electronic products”.

In 2018, global economy registered some growth but appeared
to slow down at the end of the year. According to the
International Monetary Fund (“IMF"), global economic growth
was estimated to increase by 3.7% in 2018, and is forecast to
increase by 3.5% and 3.6% in 2019 and 2020, respectively.

According to the statistics, the output value of PCBs in the global
market amounted to US$58.84 billion in 2017, while the same
will maintain moderate growth at a compound growth rate of
3.2% from 2018 to 2022. By 2022, the output value of PCBs in
the global market will amount to US$68.81 billion.

The PCB industry has been long established, with its early
presence mainly distributed in Europe, North America, and
Japan. Due to global migration of the electronics sector, Asia
takes the lead in the PCB industry development on the globe.
According to information available, the output value of PCBs in
China is anticipated to reach US$29.73 billion in 2017,
accounting for approximately 51% of the global output value. It
is anticipated that the output value of PCBs in China will amount
to US$35.69 billion in 2022.

A PCB is a component necessary for electronic products. With
continuous technology advancements, the demand of PCBs is
steady and is expected to continue to grow. The range of
application of PCBs is extensive, including communication
devices, industrial controller, medical devices, security electronics,
national defense and aerospace. In recent years, driven by the
demands of emerging sectors such as new energy vehicles,
Internet of Things, energy conservation and environmental
protection, and information security, good business
opportunities will be brought to the PCB market.

Automobile electronics becomes a global trend, which promotes
the rapid growth of automobile PCBs. PCBs are widely used in
engine, control, safety, information and in-vehicle systems.
Compared with conventional vehicles, the requirement of
electronic for new energy vehicle is higher. In view of the
immense effort in promoting the development of new energy
vehicle by countries around the world, it shall create tremendous
business opportunities to the PCB market in the future.

8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

The new applications of PCBs will further drive the development
of the PCB industry. The 5G deployment will significantly
advance the progress of the PCB industry, resulting in a soaring
number of PCBs used in unit devices and base stations amid a
growing demand for a total number of devices and base
stations. It is expected that the 5G development will enter into
the mature stage in around 2020, and new prospects will then
emerge in the PCB market.

Although the PCB market has an encouraging prospect, it also
faces numerous difficulties. As the PRC government has
strengthened its efforts on environmental protection, producing
enterprises that fail to meet the requirements will be subject to
rectification, or even replacement or suspension, while those
compliant PCB manufacturers are required to increase
investments in environmental engineering and wastewater
treatment capacities, undoubtedly weighing on their operating
costs.

Against the capacity expansion launched by many PCB
manufacturers amid a growing number of new PCB
manufacturers in recent years, as well as the failure of
production and technological capacities to meet market
demands, the market has eventually become aggressive, with
the possibility of triggering a fierce pricing competition. With the
unit price being adjusted downwards, the slim profit margin will
further shrink.

The labor costs in China have been on the rise over the past
decade, as corporate expenditure rises due to full
implementation of policies on social security and public housing
fund. A phenomenon of “recruitment difficulty, labor shortage”
often appears in the developed coastal areas, in which case,
recruitment of frontline employees, particularly seasoned
technicians, becomes increasingly difficult. As a result, many
domestic PCB enterprises gradually relocate their production
bases to inland provinces and cities, or comprehensive reform to
accelerate the process of production automation and
intellectualization to reduce the dependence on manpower and
ensure the stability of quality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is an original equipment manufacturer (“"OEM")
provider of PCBs and focused on the production of quality PCBs,
which meet industrial standards such as IPC Standards, as well as
the customers’ requirement.

We focused on the conventional PCBs with a well-developed
capacity to produce multi-layered and special material PCBs with
primary applications in cars, communication equipment, medical
devices, industrial automation equipment and consumer
electronics.

Our continuous diversification of product mix and market
coverage allows the Group to swiftly cater for the changes in
demand from certain sectors and adjust our production output
accordingly, resulting in reduced reliance on a single product and
market. Benefited from the enormous business opportunities
generated from automobile electronics in recent years, the
proportion of this section is correspondingly higher.

Over the past 29 years of our operation, the Group has
established a solid foundation and close relationship with our
customers. The Group provided direct and indirect services to
OEM customers across Asia, Europe, Africa, North America,
South America and Oceania, who are engaged in various
industries with many of them running in a multinational model.
Certain of our major OEM customers are leading players in their
markets. The Group supplied PCB products directly to a number
of leading electronic manufacturing service providers, in order to
assemble finished goods of OEM for the Group’s indirect OEM
customers. To date, the Group has built up long-term
relationship with major customers, and some of them have been
working with us for over a decade. The Company believed that
these customers also considered the Group as their important
partner for their supply chain. Therefore, our profound and long-
term relationship with customers will enable the Group to know
the trend of customers’ demand more quickly.

The Group is of the view that product and process quality are
integral to its business. The Group complies with various
international quality standards and systems, including 1SO9001,
ISO14001 and IATF16949 certifications. The Group has put in
place a number of quality measures and simplification plan to
promote a culture of quality product. Quality is of paramount
importance to the business of the Group and is regularly
reviewed and improved by dedicated personnel to enhance
customer satisfaction. In addition, the Group obtained AS9100
certification in 2009 to qualify for the provision of advanced and
reliable PCBs for the aerospace industry. This is a testament to
our product quality.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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The impact caused by the high production cost affected the
current year. Followed by the sweep of emission limits and
environmental protection measures across China, PCB
manufacturers are facing steep challenges. As a PCB
manufacturer, the Group needs to formulate appropriate
responses and increasing the capital input in respect of
environmental protection. Finally, part of the profits would be
set off; however, viewing from another perspective,
manufacturers failing to meet the required standards would be
eliminated or would greatly increase their costs for the
compliance with the required standards, whereas the Group has
realized the need for environmental protection and has made
relevant investment many years ago. Therefore, compared with
those failing to meet the standards, the Group is under less
pressure in such new setting in the PCB market and better
positioned to seize opportunities.

Although China remains to be the “World Factory”, labor costs
are no longer as low as those over a decade ago and have
gradually increased. In addition, the labor supply is insufficient in
the coastal areas. Driven by Industry 4.0, the Group has
enhanced its production automation, promoting the use and
flow of production information, optimizing and improving costs
and quality, and hence leading the Group to develop towards
intelligent production in the future.

In 2019, serious challenge will expose the Group to a lot of risks
and uncertainties. The Group has been concentrating on its PCB
business for over 29 years, in which the accumulated experience
and networks allow the Group to make further development in
the PCB market. In order to cater for the future market and
production needs, the Group has made great efforts on the
expansion of its existing production facilities in past years and
plans to develop another production base. The Group will also
actively study the effective use of the land resources currently
held by the Group and consider changing the land use rights of
certain lands. At the same time, the Group will also consider
opportunities to maximize shareholders’ benefits from time to
time.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B B
in HK$'000 2017
FET —EF—tF
Turnover B 633,572
Gross profit ES 122,122
Earnings before interest, taxes, FLE - BIE - ITEREEIAT

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") ([EBITDAL) 63,699
Net profit P 24,275

The Group's turnover for the year of 2018 was approximately
HK$766.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
20.9% compared to that of the last year, primarily due to
increase in sales orders from the existing customers.

The Group’s gross profit for the year of 2018 was approximately
HK$178.9 million, representing an increase of approximately
46.5% compared to that of the last year. Gross profit margin
increased by approximately 4.1% to 23.4% from 19.3%,
primarily due to economies of scale resulting from increase in
sales and production volume.

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year of 2018 were
approximately HK$107.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 16.2% compared to approximately HK$92.5
million for the last year, primarily due to the increase in
commission, research and development costs, salaries and staff
welfare expenses.

The Group’s EBITDA amounted to approximately HK$117.4
million for the year of 2018 as compared to approximately
HK$63.7 million for the last year.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$58.4 million for
the year of 2018 as compared to approximately HK$24.3 million
for the last year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by approximately HK$10.9
million, or 147.3%, to approximately HK$18.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$7.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to
increase in government grants and net foreign exchange gain.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
HK$6.4 million, or 34.2%, to approximately HK$25.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$18.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was
primarily due to increase in commission.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$8.6 million, or 11.7%, to approximately HK$82.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$73.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was
primarily due to increase in research and development costs,
salaries and staff welfare expenses.

Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
approximately HK$0.06 million, similar to the amount of
approximately HK$0.2 million for the last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.6 million, or
8.0%, to approximately HK$8.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from approximately HK$7.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase was primarily due to
increase in bank loans interest resulting from the increase in
floating interest rate during the year.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company

The Group recorded profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$58.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 compared to approximately HK$24.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing an
increase of approximately 140.3%. The increase of profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
mainly due to the net effect of the increase in gross profit of
approximately HK$56.8 million, the increase in other income and
gains of approximately HK$10.9 million mainly due to increase in
government grants and net foreign exchange gain, the increase
in selling and distribution expenses of approximately HK$6.4
million mainly due to the increase in commission, the increase in
general and administrative expenses of approximately HK$8.6
million mainly due to the increase in research and development
costs, salaries and staff welfare expenses, and the increase in
income tax expense of approximately HK$18.2 million.

Property, plant and equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$398.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$14.9 million from that of 31 December 2017.
This was mainly due to the net effect of (i) depreciation of
approximately HK$28.1 million with respect to the Group’s
property, plant and equipment in the current year, (i) decrease
in exchange realignment of approximately HK$19.9 million, and
(iii) total additions/transfer during the year of approximately
HK$33.2 million.
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Trade and bills receivables

There was an increase in trade and bills receivables as at 31
December 2018 of approximately HK$15.1 million as compared
to that of 31 December 2017, which was mainly due to the
increase in revenue. For further details, please refer to note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and bills payables

There was a decrease in trade and bills payables as at 31
December 2018 of approximately HK$0.7 million as compared
to that of 31 December 2017, which was mainly due to the
decrease in raw materials inventory. For further details, please
refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank and other borrowings

The Group had bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2018 in the sum of approximately HK$179.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$13.5 million from
the sum of approximately HK$193.0 million as at 31 December
2017. The decrease in borrowings was mainly due to repayment
of borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments. For further details, please refer to note 24 to
financial statements.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$493.3 million (2017: HK$423.6 million)
including cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and
restricted cash totalling approximately HK$167.5 million (2017:
HK$107.3 million). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
non-current liabilities of approximately HK$31.0 million (2017:
HK$18.6 million), and its current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$396.5 million (2017: HK$389.2 million),
consisting mainly of payables arising in the normal course of
operations and bank borrowings for financing of new production
facilities. Accordingly, the Group’s current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was around 1.2 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 1.1).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over total equity, was approximately 0.4 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: approximately 0.4).

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2018. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 December 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits and restricted cash, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, other payables and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings which are denominated in currencies
other than Hong Kong dollar, and consequently we have foreign
exchange exposure from translation of amounts denominated in
foreign currencies as at the reporting date. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not engage in any
derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company during the current and last years. The capital of the
Company is comprised of ordinary shares and capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018, capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1.6 million (2017: HK$7.6
million).

Dividend
The Board recommend the payment of an final dividend of
HK6.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: nil).

The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting to be held on
Friday, 24 May 2019 and, if approved, is expected to be paid on
or about Wednesday, 26 June 2019 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 5 June 2019. The dividend is declared and will be
paid in HKD.

Dividend Policy

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns
when its dividend policy considers:

o the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

o return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of
the Group;

o the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;

o the Group’s liquidity position;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of

the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
the applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 3 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of determining entitlements to the
dividend. In order to qualify for the dividend, all transfers of
shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.

Information on employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 986 employees (2017:
1,038 employees), including the executive Directors. Total
employee benefit expense (including Directors’ remuneration)
was approximately HK$117.1 million, as compared to
approximately HK$101.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. Remuneration is determined with reference to market
norms and individual employee’s performance, qualification and
experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group's performance as well as the individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme in Hong Kong, and various welfare plans including
the provision of pension funds, medical insurance and other
relevant insurance for employees of our Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
The Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 November 2014 (“Share Option Scheme”)
where options to subscribe for shares may be granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 44 to 46 of this
annual report.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share
Option Scheme during the current and prior years. Details of
remuneration of Directors and chief executive and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out on note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Significant investments held

Except for a financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income as at 31 December 2018 (please see note
17 to the consolidated financial statements), the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other
company.

Future plans for material investments and capital
assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group explores the
opportunity and discussing with independent third parties of: (i)
considering to acquire relevant sites in Zhuhai, Guangdong
Province, PRC as the location for the Group’s potential
production facility; and (i) changing the use of part of its land
use rights in Shenzhen, PRC. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2018.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Charges of assets

As at 31 December 2018, certain assets of the Group as set out
below were charged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group:

(i)  the Group's leasehold land and buildings, construction in
progress and investment property with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately HK$192.1 million (2017:
HK$193.1 million).

(i)  the Group's leasehold lands situated in Mainland China,
which are classified as prepaid land lease payments with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$4.8 million (2017:
HK$5.3 million).

(i)  pledged deposits with banks amounting to approximately
HK$31.1 million (2017: HK$33.9 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

Events after reporting period
There were no significant events for the reporting period up to
the date of this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENSNEEERE

DIRECTORS

Our Board is responsible and has general powers for the
management and conduct of the business. The following table
sets forth information regarding members of the Board as at the
date of this report:

HE
EEEARXBNEERKE YR ER T EiEE
N TREIINABRERERESTERNENER ¢

Name Appointment Date Resignation Date Age
®E ZEBRH B E B Fie
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin 8 July 2014 - 69
PRECE St 4 —ZE-MFE+ANH

Mrs. Chan Yung 8 July 2014 - 69
BREZ L —E-WE+LANA

Mr. Chan Yan Wing 8 July 2014 - 39
PR B K e A4 —ET-MFELHANA

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong 1 November 2017 = 40
BREN A —Z—+F+—H—H

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 18 November 2014 — 71
EERALAE —E—mNFE+—HATNR

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu 18 November 2014 - 51
ERER R S A —ZE-—mE+—A+N\R

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 30 September 2016 - 68
2B %4 —E-REHhA=TH

CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CHIEF

EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (BFR% &), aged 69, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder
of the Group and has participated in the management of the
Group since January 1992. Mr. Chan is the director of all our
subsidiaries. Mr. Chan is responsible for the corporate strategic
planning and overall business development of the Group. Mr.
Chan is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung, the father of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director) and Mr. Chan Yan
Wing, (the executive Director).

Before incorporation of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited (“YT
Industrial”) in 1992, Mr. Chan was a sole proprietorship
conducting business under the name of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial
Co. from September 1989, which was primarily engaged in the
manufacturing of PCBs and which enabled Mr. Chan to acquire
relevant industry knowledge and accumulate relevant experience.
Mr. Chan has more than 29 years of experience in the PCB
production and sales.
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Mr. Chan currently serves as vice chairman of the Fujian
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (ZYIHTEERT ), the vice
chairman of The Employers’ Federation of Shenzhen (&I
EBEHAE) since September 2004 and currently as the
honorary president of the highest ranking members (&= &5 &
B E 2 ER) since 2010. Mr. Chan is also currently the vice
chairman of China Printed Circuit Association (|2 BEN&LE B&1T
#12) (CPCA) since March 2010. Mr. Chan was recognised as
"Pioneer Worker” by CPCA in 2012.

Mr. Chan attended his secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC from 1962 to 1964.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mrs. Chan Yung (BRE), aged 69, is our executive Director and
vice president. She has participated in the management of the
Group since September 1996. Mrs. Chan is one of the directors
of four of our subsidiaries. Mrs. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the administration, purchasing and logistics of the
Group, corporate strategic planning and overall business
development of the Group. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin, and the mother of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr.
Chan Yan Wing.

Mrs. Chan completed her secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC in June 1968.

Mr. Chan Yan Wing (BR2 k), aged 39, is our executive
Director and vice president. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong. Mr. Chan is one of the directors of six of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan has approximately 15 years of experience in the PCB
industry. Mr. Chan joined our Group in July 2003 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group.

Mr. Chan graduated from University of London in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science in Management in
August 2002. In December 2016, Mr. Chan was elected as a
member of the First Session of the Shenzhen Municipal Pingshan
District Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
he has been a member and the executive director of the Youth
Committee of Hong Kong Printed Circuit Association since
January 2013, October 2017 respectively. He has been the vice
chairman of the Fujian Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (&
YITH4RFEFEE) since January 2012.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (FR 8 3¢), aged 40, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan Yan Wing. Mr. Chan is
one of the directors of three of our subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan joined our Group in April 2011 and appointed as
executive Director for the period from July 2014 to October
2017. He was primarily responsible for overseeing factory
expansion, information technology, human resources and
building management of the Group. Since November 2017, he
has been re-designated as a non-executive Director. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked at Benoy Limited (a private
architectural firm) from June 2006 to March 2011 with his last
position as a senior graphic designer where he was responsible
for coordinating project construction and installation and
architectural design. After his re-designation as non-executive
Director, he continues to advise the Board on operational
strategies of the Group and the furtherance of its business
portfolio. He also continues to develop in the area of project
construction and architectural design.

Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in graphic design in Hong
Kong Technical Colleges (currently known as Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education) in Hong Kong in September
1999. Mr. Chan then graduated from London College of Printing
(currently known as London College of Communication) in the
United Kingdom in May 2002 and received a bachelor’s degree
of arts in Graphic and Media Design and was awarded a
professional development award in Print Production (Print
Packaging and Buying) in August 2002. He also obtained a
master’s degree in Interactive Digital Media at The University of
Sussex in the United Kingdom in November 2004. Mr. Chan has
been a member of the Youth Committee of Hong Kong Printed
Circuit Association since January 2013.
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BEENSNEEEGEF

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming (# £ 88), aged 71, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Chung has over 33 years of experience in manufacturing of
motor cars, toys, electronics and communications. Mr. Chung
was the executive director of L.K. Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 558) and Kader Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 180). Both companies are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration in the University of East Asia (currently known as
University of Macau) in the Macau Special Administrative Region
in May 1989. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen (£J)[E£), aged 68, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 30 September 2016. He
is a retired banker. Mr. Lau held senior positions at the Bank of
East Asia, HSBC and Hang Seng Bank, he has over 37 years of
experience in the banking industry in Hong Kong, China and
Canada. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong in July 1973. He was a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers.

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (E8%8#8), aged 51, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Yau has over 26 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yau has been working as financial controller and company
secretary of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Yau had also
been working in international accounting firms.

Mr. Yau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 1992 with a bachelor’s degree of arts
in Accountancy. Mr. Yau has been an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since April
1994 and March 2000 respectively.
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EENSNEEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our executive Directors and senior management are responsible
for the day-to-day management of our business. The following
table sets out certain information concerning our senior
management as at the date of this report:

EREER
HOTESLSRELERERARRKEE - TR#ED
RABRERMNERSAEEE A TER -

Name Age Positions within the Company

®E Fie REDRZBA

Mr. Lai Hau Yin 51  Chief financial officer and company secretary
REG KL BREMBHEERARME

Mr. Leung Siu Yat 54 Vice president

RAOBRFEHE EIEE =

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen 63  Vice president

BIREEBREE Bl4azk

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (32 8), aged 51, was appointed as our chief
financial officer in March 2014 and our company secretary in
August 2014, and is mainly responsible for overseeing the
financial planning, accounting and company secretarial affairs of
our Group. Mr. Lai has more than 26 years of experience in the
areas of audit and accounting gained from various listed
companies and accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2009, a certified
practise accountant of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants since September 1996 and a certified tax
adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January
2014.

Mr. Lai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business from Deakin
University of Australia in Australia in December 1992, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from West Coast Institute of
Management & Technology in Australia in May 2000 (long
distance learning course).

Mr. Leung Siu Yat (R4 ), aged 54, first joined our Group as
a production manager and the vice president in November 2004,
and is mainly responsible for supervising and management of the
PCB factory production of our Group. Mr. Leung has over 29
years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Leung worked for Ellington (Guangdong) Electronics
Technology Company Limited (a PCB manufacturer) as a deputy
general manager of a manufacturing factory from August 2000
to September 2004. From January 1997 to July 2000, he worked
for Kalex Printed Circuit Board Ltd. (a PCB manufacturer) with his
last position as an assistant production manager. From March
1986 to January 1997, Mr. Leung worked for Kalex Circuit Board
(Hong Kong) Ltd., a PCB manufacturer, as a production
superintendent. Mr. Leung was mainly responsible for overseeing
the factory operation and supervising the production staff in
these past positions. Mr. Leung completed his secondary school
education in Guangdong province, the PRC in July 1981.
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BEENSNEEEGEF

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen (B %), aged 63, was appointed as our
vice president in January 2004 and is mainly responsible for
market development and product sales of our Group. Mr. Ho has
over 22 years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ho worked for Enigma Interconnect Corp.
(formerly known as Circuit Graphics Ltd, a PCB manufacturer) in
Canada with his last position as president from 1993 to 2002,
where he was mainly responsible for implementing new
technology in PCB production and business development.

Mr. Ho obtained a diploma of technology in mechanical
technology from British Columbia Institute of Technology,
Canada in June 1980. Mr. Ho was accredited as an associate
member of the Society of Engineering Technologists of British
Columbia in Canada in June 1980.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (222 &) has been the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of our Company since March 2014
and August 2014, respectively. His biographical details are set
out in the above section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile — Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the
top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to the success
of the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing
enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such
principles and practices.

From 1 January 2018 up to the date of this annual report, the
Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except
code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 as more particularly described
below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the Group
as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, non-executive
directors should attend general meeting. However, Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong, being the non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the general meeting on 24 May 2018 due to the need to
attend other meetings. However, Mr. Chan often provides
valuable advice to the Company with his skills, experience and
expertise and he will strive to attend future general meeting(s) of
the Company so as to keep a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders of the Company.
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EEARE

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings of the Model Code for
Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiries to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of
dealings set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, three of which
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director, and three
are independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. They are
the parents of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director)
and Mr. Chan Yan Wing (the executive Director).

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 18
to 23.
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SEERRE

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS
MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholder meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

EENEERZHER
EREENBE—_FT-N\F+t_A=1T—HLFER
TREFEEH ZBETRMERREZHFEXRH
BERIIT -

Directors’ Attendance Attended/Held

ESHRERYBTRE
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezees EHZEE FMZEE® REZEE RRBEEAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman) BRELE(FE) 6/6 N/ATE A NATHEF N/AZE A 17
Mrs. Chan Yung BEZT 6/6 NATER NATER NATER 0/1
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BRBK %A 6/6 33 33 17N 171
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong REXEE 5/6 NATER 23 17 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming EXHLL 6/6 33 313 101 N
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu EPERR L& 6/6 33 33 1N 171
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2B L E 6/6 33 33 1N 1N
BOARD MEETINGS Exaed

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of
the Company. Other Board meetings will be held when
necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. For the year ended 31
December 2018, six Board meetings were held.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors in
advance of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include
additional matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

GENERAL MEETINGS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, one general meeting
was held.
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TEERBE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group is
conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) to review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects
of the Company's affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their
respective written terms of reference as approved by the Board,
these Board committees are governed by the Company'’s articles
of association as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so
far as the same are not in conflict with the provisions contained
in the articles of association). With the new composition of
members of the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee, the independent non-
executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to
perform the duties required by the respective Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should be
reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, risk
management and internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 59 to 152 were prepared on the basis set out in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditors of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 58.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.
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SEERRE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
During the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors have
been given relevant guideline materials and attended a training
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of
disclosure of interest and business of the Group. Such induction
materials and briefings will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors
will be arranged whenever necessary.

All Directors have provided record of training attendance, and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training
in accordance with the Code Provisions.

During the year, all Directors pursued continuous professional
development, and relevant details are set out below:

Name of Directors

B R
EBUIIFRTEECRELTRANEIBFIELFE
BIUMR  NAARRREWBUIFNTEFTHTE L
mARRSE 33 RMBEL S| - BREE S| M RE
B ANL ©

FEEXERE
REZ-_Z-\F+_A=1+—HILFE 28EF
VR EREEBESIER - X2 MBI ABREE
REZZBEREE BRANEEZHBENRRAD
RASEEaRBEEENER FEEERZEAE
FERMENEHANEEZSEHRENRE®R - 0F
FE ARABREELIFEGRNEXEREK -

2REEFHERMBIIHFELS - MARBFESER
BTG B RS BIE N

R MEESHERFEEERR - BRAFEHD
LU

Types of training

EEHR EIER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin PRECE Se 4 A, B
Mrs. Chan Yung PRE 22+ A B
Mr. Chan Yan Wing R B4 A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BRES T4 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming EERAKE A, B
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu ERER MBS 4 A, B
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 282 5 A A, B
Remarks: E

A — Attending conferences/forums/seminars
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

28

A— 2B HIE R
B— BIETIY, AR, T MH



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within our Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for our Group. The Board
considers this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured
by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced and
high calibre individuals with a sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive Directors.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, non-executive Director and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date (except for Mr.
Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong, whose term is for
three years commencing from his date of appointment) and shall
continue subject to termination by either party in accordance
with the terms thereof and the retirement and re-election
provisions in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting (“"AGM") one third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the name
of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year
will be those who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment but as between persons who become
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by the Company. Such retiring Directors may, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors on 18 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. Its
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Chung Yuk Ming and Mr. Yau Wing Yiu,
one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing, and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.

For year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meetings, in which it reviewed the structure of the Board and
recommended to the Board for reappointment of all directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee also determined the criteria of the board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”).

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
nomination committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be
able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of
the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.
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To enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and to
achieve diversity on the Board, the Board adopted on 18
November 2014 the Board Diversity Policy, pursuant to which (i)
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board; and (ii) all Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).
For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(C) atleast 70% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(D) at least two of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has fulfilled
the measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 18 November 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25
and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference
of the remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with
the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility
and accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of
the Company'’s performance and prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration policy of independent non-executive Directors
is to ensure that the independent non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company'’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of independent non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date
of this annual report, the remuneration committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung
Yuk Ming (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Yau Wing
Yiu, one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.
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Details of remuneration of Directors and chief executive are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

ERERTBEHFINFBHNGA M BRERMES -

BAE E TR AIMT R IO 2 D EE AT ST AE
XEBISE HE-Z—)\F+_A=Z+—HILFE
SHRERERK EIRGIMEER D 2 FEFIEINT

Number of
Remuneration band Individual
& E AB
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % 1,000,00078 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7L E 1,500,000 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings in which it assessed the performance and
reviewed the remuneration package of the directors and senior
management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Director passed on 18 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and
Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the audit committee was adopted in compliance with the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and oversees risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen and Mr. Chung Yuk Ming.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee members met twice with the external auditors
and the Group’s senior management to discuss and review,
among other things, the following matters:

(@)  the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the interim results for the six-month ended 30 June
2018 to ensure the full, complete and accurate disclosure
in the aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the
accounting standards and other legal requirements for
presenting the same to the Board for approval;
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(b)  the term and remuneration for the appointment of Ernst &
Young as external auditors to perform the audit of final
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
review on the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2018;

(c)  the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services;

(d) the continuing connected transactions of the Group;

(e)  the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls;

(f)  the overall effectiveness of its internal audit function; and

(9) the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff and the accounting and financial reporting matters
and their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of the external auditors and has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditors for the ensuing year at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, the Board has not taken a different view from the
audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged Ernst & Young as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, Ernst &
Young also provided non-audit services in connection with the
taxation service. The fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31
December 2018 approximately amounted to HK$1,480,000 and
HK$483,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 58.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Hau Yin being our company secretary is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of our Group. Mr.
Lai is also our Company’s chief financial officer. The Company
confirms that Mr. Lai has for the year in 2018 attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

The management assesses the potential risks faced by the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institute engaged by the Group. This year's
evaluation covered the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2018, no significant
risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

The management assess the internal control system of the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institution engaged by the Group. The professional
institution has completed the evaluation for the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018. Based on the internal
control reviews conducted in 2018, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise. The 1A
function is independent of the Group’s daily operation and
carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA
function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and
budget provided were sufficient.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the
Company are prepared in accordance with the articles of
association as follows:

(1) One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the Directors of the
Company for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Room 809-810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre,
151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@yantat.com

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

Registered office of the Company

Address: Clifton House 75 Fort Street
P.O. Box 1350 Grand Cayman KY-1108
Cayman Islands

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin
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(3)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact
the Company at the following:

By post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong
By email to ir@yantat.com

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her
proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to include
the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the
Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investing public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2018 has been provided in this annual
report. While the AGM provides a valuable forum for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website (www.yantat.com) to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
"Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” set out on pages 4
and 5 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
pages 8 to 17 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 59
to 152.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$6.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7. This summary
does not form part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2018, the investment properties of the Group
were revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor
and property valuer on an open market value basis at
HK$25,850,000 (2017: HK$25,074,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out below and in
note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 63 and 64 of this
annual report and note 38 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company'’s distributable reserves,
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$53.3 million (2017: HK$57.5
million).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounted to HK$352,000 (2017: HK$225,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 31.0% and
60.9% (2017: 30.1% and 59.3%) respectively of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
purchases made by the Group from its largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 38.1% and
69.6% (2017: 36.2% and 68.4%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2018, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their close associates, nor any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into, or existed, during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

SUBSIDIARIES
The details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group's total capital expenditure amounted
to approximately HK$27.7 million (2017: HK$13.7 million) which
was mainly used for acquisition of machineries and equipment.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
date are set out in note 24 and note 25 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The details of the Group’s charges of assets
are set out on page 17.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting
and shall continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the service
contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.
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No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered
to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director of the
Company or an entity connected with such Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the
business of the Group to which the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 18 to 23 of this annual
report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report and Prospectus, there was
no contract of significance or contract of significance for
provision of services, to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the controlling
shareholders have become effective from the Listing Date.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director of the
Company has made an annual declaration in respect of their
compliance with the terms of non-competition undertaking.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors and non-executive Director have become effective from
the Listing Date.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors and non-executive
Director of the Company have complied with the non-
competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non
Competition Undertakings”) referred by the controlling
shareholders to the Company as provided under the non-
competition undertaking.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the following continuing
connected transactions (as defined under the Listing Rules) for
the year ended 31 December 2018:

(1)  On 16 May 2016, YT Industrial, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement
("Yantek Lease”) with Yantek Electronics Company Limited
("Yantek”) a connected person of the Company within the
meanings of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Yantek
Lease, YT Industrial shall lease from Yantek the premises
situated at Flat E on 15th Floor and Flat Roof immediately
above of Tower 5 and Car Parking Space No. 11 on Car
Park B1, One Beacon Hill, No. 1 Beacon Hill Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a gross total floor area of
approximately 1,473 square feet at a monthly rental of
HK$55,000 for a term of two years commencing on 1 June
2016 and ending on 31 May 2018 as staff quarter for Mr.
Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and renewed for
two years on 3 May 2018 with a monthly rent of
HK$58,000. The lease term is from 1 June 2018 to 31 May
2020.

BITESRFHTES 2 AR FER

ARRIZHITESRIIFRTEFTEHRE
A IERIE L FE R -

T

BT EERIFRTEE 2 TIBRFAREB LTA
BB AERK o

BN IERTEFCEMMEREARARNITE S R IEH
TEZEETTIBEFEHBLRARREREEIERHIT
TR R °

WMEBRSE

2R AR B AR AR IR N B AR R E I AN R RN T
Bie (T REKRERE [ERIERRROBE — T8
ﬂ}g‘(uﬁj)

HERBRRZEH

BE-ZT-/\FT-_A=+—RHLFE  ARRHE
EHMTJ% B E R AR R S A AP B A RIRT AL
BERAH -

@Eﬁ%
BE_F—/\FI_A=1—ALFE  ARFEH
ﬂxﬁ-ﬂzfa 25 (e LHRAD :

(1 RZE—ARFERATAH ARREEE2ENE
NEBREBEEANRIZCEEAL(EER LM
HADBEETFARAR([EED T HE RS
([BEHEE]) - REEEHEE  BEBTEBSAA
EHRAMNEBNEER LB 1HFEE LIRS
PEI1SHEEZ=E FBRESANBIEES 1158EA
MYE(REEBDMBEYI1A3FARAR) AfAE
5om%m HHBF—_Z—R"FAAA—HBEBZE
T N\ERA=F+—HI - BHERE - EHAE
ﬁ%%%i&ﬁ%%ﬁiz,%lﬁ% 2 S
—N\ERA=ZREHMFE - AT A58,000/87T

B - N\FEA—BREE_ZT_TFH
B == Elllt -
REKEERERAT

43

F3R 2018



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

(2)  On 25 November 2016, Yan Tat Technology Limited (“YT
Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company renewed a tenancy agreement (“Headquarters
Lease”) with Yantek, a connected person of the Company
within the meanings of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the
Headquarters Lease, YT Technology shall lease from Yantek
the office premises and warehouse located at Room 09, 10
and 14 on 8th Floor, Kwong Sang Hong Centre, Nos. 151-
153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
monthly rental of HK$80,300 for a term of 2 years
commencing on 25 November 2016 and ending on 24
November 2018 for the Group's use, and renewed for two
years on 1 November 2018 with a monthly rent of
HK$90,000. The lease term is from 25 November 2018 to
24 November 2020.

Yantek is beneficially owned as to 34% by Mr. Chan Yan Wing,
33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 33% by Ms. Chan Yan Sam.
Mr. Chan Yan Wing and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong are the Directors
of the Company. Ms. Chan Yan Sam is the sister of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan Wing and the daughter of Mr.
Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above are
fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
requirements and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year is disclosed in note 34 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our
Shareholders passed on 18 November 2014 for the purpose to
provide our Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes as
the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, at their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes to take up options to
subscribe for shares: (a) any employee, supplier, service provider,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Group
(including any director, whether executive and whether
independent or not, of the Group) who is in full-time or part-
time employment with the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any
person who have contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 8
December 2014 unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in the section
headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V to
the Prospectus. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 18 November 2014 and remains in force until
17 November 2024. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the
Share Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the
exercise of options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
date of grant and expiring on the last day of such 10-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the
Share Option Scheme.
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The total number of new shares of the Company that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 24,000,000 shares, which represents
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject
to issuance of a circular by the Company and approved by its
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is required to be approved by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to 31
December 2018, no options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

Additional particulars of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was any of the
Company and its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures
of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interests in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules:

EERFETBRAERKRS - HERGORE
SHERIRR

RZB-N\F+ZA=+—H BEFRKERAEET
BABRARR - HEBEKE AR R, LEEEE GE
EREFMPEGRI((ERRBMEED]) EXVER) Z
Befn ~ MHEARO RESTHEAE THLHENREES R
HEHAIEI2HEATHFENECTMOER - RE
ETIAR IR 2 AR AT R ZEB AN AN R B KB X P R4
fm -

The Company P NN
Number of
ordinary
Name of Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director Group member nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
BEEEBEREE
EEHR SEREEE B My (k1) BERESL
Mr. Chan Wing Yin The Company Interest in a controlled 180,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 2) shares (L)
FRECE S A PAN/NE] REHLEE RS (M 2) 180,000,000
AR (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung The Company Interest of spouse (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
BT PIN/NE] AefB R (5 3) 180,000,000
A% (L)
Notes: B 3E
1. The letter “L"” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the 1. [L] I EHERNAR R SRR AR EE RO TR -

Company or the relevant associated corporation

2. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl Holdings
Ltd. (“Million Pearl”). Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin
and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs.
Chan Yung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

3. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares to which Mr. Chan Wing Yin is interested.

2. 7872 &) 8 Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ([ Million Pearl |) %5 49 75%
=  Million Pearl BFREKB LA RRELZ T HRIHEH70% K
30% 5 - MERBAERRBLLWES - REZFHFRBEK
Bl BREEEERBIERRBL L HEBRRNEREE 2G5
AR ©

3. Million Pearl 73 51| i B 48 B 5 4 K PR B8 &2 575 70% K 30% 4
3% - BB L+ ARAR GRS « RIEDSRHRIED - R
B+ WA R S A A I IRRIIKE 2 D S
s -
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Associated Corporation B EE
Number of
Name of ordinary
associated Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director corporation nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
FEEERHE
ExpE HEEE S B B EEtE GERD) BERES
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
BRECBE 4 ERnA A TBEE 10 8%
Mrs. Chan Yung Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
PREL L ERBEAAN I BERE 10 %
Note: e
1. The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated corporation, 1. P BB i 25 15 M AR A Million Pearl MRS - HEMRAE T4

Million Pearl, which is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by
Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which
other is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMATREQFRG REBK
BhRZERR KR

REZF-NF+ZA=+—8 BEFHAA U TA
T/ ER(BEFAARALTETBABRIN RARE
PSRBT - AR AEERBES LB
BIRGIEXVERE 2 K530 JHEAM AR R A
BEIRE  IREFBH R EHOIF 336 RTAR
REREAFENELRMOERIORABNOT

Number of
ordinary % of
shares held interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (Note 1) the Company
BEEEREE RAEATZ
BREE HE B, HEmME (FFzE1) EREIL
Million Pearl (Note 2) Beneficial owner 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
Million Pearl (B§7E2) EnfEAA 180,000,000 A% (L)
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREEE 4 RIEHLEBERER (F5E3) 180,000,000 f% (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung Interest of spouse (Note 4) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)

REZ L fofdiEes (Mt 4)
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant Group member.
2. Million Pearl is directly interested in approximately 75% of the Company.

3. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl. Million
Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs. Chan
Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO,
Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in the same number of shares
in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

4. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

180,000,000 A (L)

1. [LIRRZALTRARRSHAEEEREK S A RRONFR -

2. Million Pearl E## A N R B4 75% H)#E % ©

3. 7N 7] Million Pearl 5 7 #975% ## % © Million Pearl g R 45 B
EERBRBRZEDRIFEBT0% R 30%#E%5 - REABL4E AR
BLTHOERE - REBEFFRBEE - REBEERRBRR
Bt AER 2 RSB NRDREGER

4. Million Pearl B R &8 B 55 4 R PR BB &2+ B35 A 70% & 30% #
o RBAZ T ARKB R ENAE - RIFZSRBREE - K
BRI WA ARRRB ERARE 2 BRKE NRGOTHES
P o

B EXHREAN R=F - AFEh=A=mn-H:
ESHTNEEEMEMAL " BR(BEERARAE
ZTBABRINRARBROFABRERD T - HER
BEFREERGIEXVESE 2 K30 BHEXARAR
ARBENERIORE - HBRBEEF R AT GRPISE 336
REAARRBRERFENECMEERTOXSE ©
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS
During the year, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has
any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither did the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed
securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of
this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages
24 to 38 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group produces PCB in China and sells them around the
world, and is faced with certain different types of risks and
uncertainties. The principal items are listed as below.

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from
major customers, particularly automobile customers. The
decrease in demand from major customers may materially
and adversely affect the business.

ii.  Fluctuation in exchange rates may adversely affect the
business.

i. The Group may be subject to any labour shortages,
increased labour cost or other factors affecting labour
force, or full implementation of social security and public
housing policies, which may materially affect the Group’s
business operation and financial condition.
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iv.  The PRC government has tightened its environmental
regulation. Although the Group’s current operation falls in
line with the requirement, it may be affected and incur
additional expenses when the relevant regulatory threshold
is further raised in the future.

v.  The US implements its America First policy, raises tariffs on
imported Chinese goods, and restricts Huawei from
participating in 5G projects, which may slow down
economic growth across the globe, and in return
decelerate the development of the PCB market.

vi.  The Brexit will officially proceed in 2019, the negative
impacts of which remain unknown to the EU market.

vii.  Currently, various PCB manufacturers are vigorously
expanding their production capacity. When the market
fails to meet the development expectation, the excessive
production capacity will result in irrational competition
among industrial peers, pushing down the unit price and
diminishing the company’s profitability.

viii.  The Group's sole production facility is based in Shenzhen.
If this facility experiences any issue that results in a lower
production output, and no third-party assistance is
identified, our sales will decline.

ix.  The Group’s major production operation activities take
place in Mainland China. Any change to the policies in
Mainland China (including taxation, foreign exchange
control, and imports and exports) is likely to affect the
Group'’s overall performance.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental protection is a collective responsibility not to be
ignored. The Group’s production factories in Shenzhen, China
possesses state-of-the-art PCB technologies and attaches a great
importance to environmental protection. The Group recognises
that the production process of PCBs would generate more
emissions than some other industries. In regard of this, we strive
to enhance the efficiency of environmental protection. The
Group sets up different management requirements for
environmental protection every year, aiming at reducing negative
impact on the environment from our operation. We have
obtained certification of IATF16949:2016 (quality assurance),
ISO14001 (environment management system), ISO9001 (quality
management system) and AS9100C (quality assurance) as well
as UL-796 (safety and management) for PCB quality standard
and environment management system. Our efforts on water
conservation was evidenced by the “Water Efficient Building
Award (557K#Z# % 48)” by the Water Resource Bureau of
Shenzhen in recognition of our work last year.

iv. HEBFKRETHRETEONEE - #RAK
SEBRMEEMRRNE ER  BRHERA
HgE-FPRSBEBEEME  AEENZ

ERERINTEYELBIER -

fa
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EEAREHIE R BREOERRE - EMIRIZPCB
MIHEEFSK -
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THEENME -
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TREMHRS  BrEEEMLER Q8
BB R A e

viil. ZREEEEE A ORY  IRRRE— ML
B ERR A EANE  SREER
D EREREREIES F 15 - el
&R

ix. AKEBIEBELAELEMHTETEAML  PE
NI RA B EE) (BRI - INEEH -
ERNEE) EREFEINAEENER
3 o

RIEGRE
RERBEETAZHEAOEREE - AEBRK BRI
B A ERE A &L ENERERRREN - BEHIRR
SEER  AEBPAHORERRNEEBRIETGRE
MTEEEEZHERY  BENL  BAZHRES
RIRMEE - AEBERRRESFASESETRANE
B EEROAREEGRH IR RNEAIE -
BMHEIRIERRAEZEERREEERACER
IATF16949:2016 M & (R B AR * 1ISO14001 IRIZE IR R
HERFE ~ 1509001 fh & & 32 R Ht & AS9100C i & (R 75
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The Group strictly observed the laws and regulations governing
air pollution, noise pollution, hazardous chemicals, sewage and
waste discharge and other environmental matters issued by PRC
national, provincial and municipal governments and authorities.
Meanwhile, as a responsible corporation, we produce all of our
products in compliance with the requirement of Cleaner
Production Standard: Printed Circuit Board Manufacturing (&2
AEZE : HRIERERIREIES) issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of China.

With resources in the Earth increasingly scarce, corporations
should have long-term vision instead of focusing on existing
interests. The Group sees there are economic benefits to be
capitalized in environmental protection and our effort focuses
chiefly in the following aspects, among others: actively pushing
forward the initiative of energy conservation and consumption
reduction by saving energy, water, material and reducing
resource consumption during the course of our production, with
a view to maximizing the cost effectiveness with minimal
resources; and full implementation of clean production to
achieve waste reduction at source. At the same time, under the
guidance of a paperless office, the Group introduced the
Enterprise Resources Planning System (“ERP” System), through
which it implemented electronic management on the its
production, sales, supply chain, and human resources with a
view to saving paper.

The environmental, social and governance report in Compliance
with appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be issued in due
course.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Board paid attention to the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. External
compliance and legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions
and business performed by the Group are within the applicable
legal framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees
and operation units from time to time.

By order of the Board

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
CHAN Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

EY:

To the shareholders of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yan
Tat Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 152, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HREEERERARLARRE
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BEX HSA2ERaR SRS RREER
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BY ZBE®RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

BRETER

BMREFAFEISRERMNEXHE BB RS
BUBBERNEARREEZNSEH - GLFREEY
HEPBRRBRETENLLKERNER TET
BRIER  BATHELEREHEBNER - JMAYH
N — FIEAEE AT R AR Al DA R

BRPELETTARS [RBEREH RS M HREK
AENEE] MoMANET  BEEELEREN
ZREBNEME - HEM - RPINBRT TERERT
R ENEA M BRI ERNERAR TR HE
FHEFF - RPIMITEAEFNGER  BREY TR
REFTEEMATHRET  AEEUBMREBER
BB RARM T AR

financial statements.

Key audit matters

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRANETNNEERRETSE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B ERE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$222,699,000 before
impairment provision of approximately HK$3,839,000.
Significant management judgement and estimation were
required in assessing the expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for the trade receivables, with reference to the grouping of
various customer segments, ageing profile of the trade
receivables balances, existence of disputes, and past
repayment history of customers and forecast economic
conditions.

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H BE5EEZESEWKELS
#9222,699,000 7% 7T (15 Al {8 5 1 49 3,839,000 /& JT ATl ) ©
EESREFIENTEREEEE((FHREEEE] KEAE
HEBERHAE MGG K2ESERHHOE - B HEUGIE
HEMEEHERE - TP A MBEERE £ K& EIRRIEA -

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

HRRBESRNRA M BERARME2.4 3R 19°
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In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, our
procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations and evidence
of subsequent settlements for selected trade receivable
balances on a sample basis; and (ii) evaluating management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECLs through testing of
the underlying information on the ageing reports generated
by the Group’s financial reporting system and assessing the
repayment history of the debtors as well as the forward-
looking factors with reference to the related publicly available
information. We also assessed the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

B ERENGER  PROEFE : ()BUSLmEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B R RETRE ()

Key audit matters

BREETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANETNMEEERETER

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

W77 E 2 A 2B FEE

The Group had inventories with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$61,599,000 at 31 December 2018. The
Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories to determine whether any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value is required after
considering, inter alia, the ageing analysis of inventories,
current market conditions and the expected future sales of
goods and usages of materials.

EEER - \F+-_AZ=Z+—HEEAEEYD
61,599,000 T FE - BEEEUFEREEETT
EHER  URZER(ATERE)FEZERER DT - ]IT
TARERERRREEIMHBREEETEERER
FEMRZE ARSI FEE -

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant assumptions and
estimates that affect the reported amount of inventories
and related disclosures.

ErAE2R 3 ETEEREELHYERECRBEER
MR ENEARRK MG -

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

R EEHEN R A M RERME24 - 3K%18 -

In evaluating management’s assessment, our procedures
included: (i) observing physical inventory counts at major
locations and checking the condition of inventories; (ii)
obtaining an understanding of the net realisable value
assessments made by management; (iii) reviewing the
inventory ageing and the usage of materials subsequent to
year end; and (iv) comparing the actual selling prices of
finished goods subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to
their carrying amounts.

FHEEREN LR SROERFE (VR EEMHERE
WEERE  URATEENRR () THRERBEYAIZRF
BEFFVERTE : (i) FBFE R RN REBMRE M AR
KR FREZ EMELEBRK MmN EREEBERERE -

REKEEZERBRAR
372018
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BY ZBE®RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBETRE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BB ET RE M B BRRABENEL

BAWER RYSAUBRABERSIFEHR
MAFERMEBNERNBRRAMGAIRRE - AL
HABERMEROZEERE - RAEH 2 EAR
EHIRE - BRULIASN » ARE W B|E MR o RAIT
BRARSHARAEMEMALE LA EEMNE
fE o
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s HEERAREKESHERNREEELE
i o RBPIEBMMEAEE  BEEAFEES
RAHEBERNEHENEATHEEN - #f AT EER
H BEEENFAKERNELESARRE - IR
BAIRBFEEARTHEN - AlE 0 EEZEED
REPIRFEAEIZFESVBRRPNEH
RE - BEGHENBRETE - AIRMEEERFE
EREER - RPINEREENZEBENHRE LA
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BY ZBE®RE ()

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Chi Ming.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEmR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—ZE— ) \F+_A=+—HIFZF

Notes
P EE

REVENUE Wz 5
Cost of sales SHER AR
Gross profit EA
Other income and gains E A Rz 5
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KRy R
General and administrative expenses — —#% 2 1T 52
Other expenses HithF
Finance costs BB R AR 7
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR F 6
Income tax expense FiSHi X 10
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RATEE AEBLFERZF

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREREERBEA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EAERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY 12

Basic and diluted HEAREE

2018
—E-N\EF
HK$'000
FHT

766,006

(587,117)

178,889

18,333
(25,063)
(82,448)
(62)
(8,099)

81,550

(PEALY)

HK24.3 cents Al

RESEERERAT
&35 2018

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
T
633,572

(511,450)

122,122
7,354

(18,724)

(73,790)

(208)
(7,508)

29,246

(4,971)

24,275

HK10.1 cents &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z _—ZE— \F+_A=+—HIFZF

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 24,275
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H#hZ2EIW A ~(Eia)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that REZHMAIEEETNHEREEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Hi2mERA(EE) :
subsequent periods:
Change in fair value of an available-for-sale  AJt HERE A T{E & T
investment 111
Exchange differences on translation HEGINETSHIPE H = FE
of foreign operations 34,205
Other comprehensive income that REZBRBTEFHEEBREN
will not be reclassified to profit or HEibZmUA ¢
loss in subsequent periods:
Change in fair value of a financial BEAFEFAEMEERER
asset at fair value through B EENNTEED
other comprehensive income -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMEE(BE), WA
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR 34,316
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARAREAABGEFAZE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO U A 458
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 31,233 58,591
60 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R 3R

31 December 2018 —Z—\#E+_-HA=+—H

Notes
B &E

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RERE 13
Investment properties REMHE 14
Prepaid land lease payments Faft L E A 15
Deposits for purchases of items of BEWXE  BEKREKEER

property, plant and equipment HiZs 16
Deposits ®& 20
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 26
Available-for-sale investment AHPERE 17
Financial asset at fair value BRFEGAEAM

through other comprehensive income % E W 8B & & 7= 17
Total non-current assets EMENEELE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18
Trade and bills receivables B SN FIA R EWEE 19
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - ek

receivables HAth pE IR 20
Pledged deposits and restricted cash ~ 2ERFZ R ZRHIH S 21
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEED 21
Total current assets MEBEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables Z S ENFIEREMNZE 22
Other payables and accruals HAth e 5RIB R FEET B A 23
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEERITIER 24
Finance lease payables L& E e IR 25
Tax payable JE TR IR
Total current liabilities mENBERTE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERARDES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

2018
= S
HK$"000
FTERT

398,676
25,850
4,599

616
296
11,706

4,119

445,862

61,599
255,704

8,473

31,621
135,876

493,273

124,973
75,249
178,539
436
17,319

396,516

96,757

542,619

RESEERERAT
&35 2018

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHET

413,550
25,074
5,073
6,108

10,731
4,153

464,689

68,434
240,630

7,246
34,425
72,832

423,567

125,636
57,435
185,390
6,421
14,314

389,196

34,371

499,060
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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371 December 2018 —ZE—\#E+_HA=+—H

2018
—ZE-N\F
Notes HK$’000
M5 FHET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 542,619
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Finance lease payables RIE S e FRIE 25 563
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEAE 26 20,549
Deferred income JRIEYA 23 9,854
Total non-current liabilities EREAERRE 30,966
Net assets BEFE 511,653
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 27 2,400
Reserves B 29 509,253
Total equity HER 511,653
Chan Yung Chan Wing Yin
BB FREE
Director Director
EFE EE
62 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

499,060

1,172
6,028
11,440

18,640

480,420

2,400
478,020

480,420



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—ZE—N\E+_-A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAAEEARE
Available-for-
sale Landand
Issued Share investment building  Exchange
share  premium Capital ~ revaluation ~ revaluation ~fluctuation Reserve  Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds* profits equity
£Ef i3 AHHER THRET i3}
B BER  RAEE AEARE  ERGE  RIEE  HBES BA s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL THL T TEL TEL THTL TR TRL
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—-+E-A-R 2,400 62,609 60,455 833 485 1,466 32,883 260,698 421,829
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - 24,275 24,275
Other comprehensive income EREMIEARA :
for the year:
Change in fair value of an A HERENATEES
available-for-sale investment - - - 111 - - - - 111
Exchange differences on translation 8BS EKER 28
of foreign operations - - - - - 34,05 - - 34,05
Total comprehensive income EREEMAER
for the year - - - 11 - 34,205 - 24,275 58,591
Transfer from retained profits ERERDEF - - - - - - 2,958 (2,958) -
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+5+-A=1+-H 2,400 62,609 60,455* 944 485¢ 35,671% 35841% 282,015 480,420

BREEEERERAA

F3R 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBHR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—ZT—N\F+-HA=+—HILF]E

Attributable to owners of the Company
RAFRE AL
Available-
forsale  Land and

Issued Share investment building  Exchange
share  premium Capital ~ Fairvalue revaluation revaluation fluctuation Reserve  Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds* profits equity

B&#f R AHEER 1HREF Ej
S HER RARE ATERE HERRE  ERRE  RIRRE RRES  REEN aRs
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TER TET TET TET THT TET THR THR THR ThR

At 31 December 2017 RZZ-t£+ZA=1+-H 2,400 62,609 60,455 944 485 35,671 35,841 282,015 430,420
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FERNBREENZ IR
hze
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\F—A—B(FE7) 62,609 60,455 35,671 35841 282015 480,420
Profit for the year EREF 58,393 58,393
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZERA/(BE) :
for the year:
Change i fair value of a —REATE AL
financial asset at fair value through PENENYBEER
other comprehensive income ATEEY 163
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBELRER
of foreign operations (27323) (27323)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ERA/ (BB
for the year 2% (27,333 - 58,393 31,233
Transfer from retained profits BRARERT - 7,468 (7,468) -

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+ZA=+-H 62,609 60,455* 43309 332940° 511,68

& Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment — * BIEHBINBRIRECEER AR - B FRILNPEARKEN

enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain subsidiaries established in the B([FE])MBRRNB SN ABRETEFEERES M
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is required to be transferred to the EHEBESNARTIRS c ETEEBEES NS EELE
PRC reserve funds which are restricted as to use. These PRC entities are not FEIEEAMBARE50% 5 - BITRAEL T AE—SEE -
required to effect any further transfer when the amount of the PRC reserve BEERE S BERREBBENBH ARG INEMARR -

funds reaches 50% of their registered capital. The PRC reserve funds can be
used to make good their future losses or to increase their registered capital.

# These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *# ZERBRP BENGA MBI R ANRERE F# 509,253,000
HK$509,253,000 (2017: HK$478,020,000) in the consolidated statement BT (ZZT—+4 : 478,020,000 7T) °

of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE _—E— N+ _-H=1+—HIF¥E

2018

—E-N\EF

Notes HK$’'000
o TExT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEHBHEERE
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax FR B A& ) 81,550
Adjustments for: oY RIB K
Finance costs BB KA 7 8,099
Bank interest income HRITH EHA 5 (568)
Depreciation e 6 28,070
Amortisation of land lease payments £ b FH & ZRIE £ 6 6 249
Reversal of write-down of B O B 2= 0] #3R)FE
inventories to net realisable value 6 (1,240)
Impairment of trade and bills B S RWFHIAR
receivables FEWZE I RE 6 898
Fair value gain on investment KEWELTEWES
properties 5,6 (2.001)
Amortisation of deferred income R FE A B £ (1,100)
Write-off of items of property, WEETE - BE &R EEE
plant and equipment 6
Gain on disposal of items of LEYE - BERREER
property, plant and equipment Uz 5,6 (310)
Impairment of other receivables Hub e R IBRE 6 -
113,647
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 5,645
Increase in trade and bills receivables 2 5 & Y3k 18 K FE YR =955 40 (22,821)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR - ke REMER
deposits and other receivables FIE () SR (1,876)
Increase in trade and bills B2 ENFIBERENEE
payables b2 pil 3,201
Increase in other payables EME AR ERT &R
and accruals =0 9,240
Exchange realignment TE 5 A% (4,549)
Cash generated from operations ELfEKENRE 102,487
Interest received BEYFE 568
Interest paid ERFE (7,936)
Interest element of finance lease mﬁﬁ?ﬂ%?ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂ S=iba)
rental payments (163)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREFEMER 8
Overseas taxes paid B g IR (6,045)
Net cash flows from operating activities &4 E TSRS R EFEE 88,919

RESEERERAT
&35 2018

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHET

29,246
7,508
(258)
26,960
243

(242)

4,211)
(933)

71

(270)
112

58,226
(10,579)
(25,120)

1,432

12,417

6,549
1,707

44,632
258
(7,134)

(403)
1,084
(2,244)

86198
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # & — &

—NE+ZA=+—HILFE

2018

—ZE-N\F

Notes HK$’000
M FHET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant

and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Deposits paid for purchases of items of

REZHRERESRE
BEWE  BFENMREEEB
HEWE - BEk&EER

TS50
BEYE  BEMXEES

property, plant and equipment Fiftie® 16
Receipts of government grants BRI 5 B
Decrease in certain time and BT EARBRITHESRD -

bank deposits pledged as security BERIES TIRITRE &

for certain banking facilities and B E iR 2 IR

bills payable
Increase in restricted cash PR 1) 14 IR <& 32 11
Net cash flows used in investing KEEZHAREREF5HE

activities
CASH FLOWS FROM METBRERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings %ﬁi_fﬂfﬂtiat?ﬁ( 330,329
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEBITER (334,292)
Capital element of finance lease BEARERSMNRNERT S

rental payments (6,538)
Net cash flows used in BEEBAARESREFE

financing activities (10,501)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH IRE& RBESZEY) S5 M~

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R 4) 64,608
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERBSEEY

beginning of year 72,832
Effect of foreign exchange rate fERF) FE

changes, net (1,564)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£XRERRLZEEY

END OF YEAR 135,876
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH BERBSZEYEHIF

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IR& MIRTTH 8 21 135,876
66 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
TET

(15,983)
1,285

(5,704)
5,364

1,517
@)

(13,523)

253,894
(281,989)

(5,989)

(34,084)

(11,414)
83,017

1,229

72,832

72,832



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS RAR MR

31 December 2018 —Z—\#E+_-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
8 July 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clifton House, P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 809-
810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the

manufacture and sale of printed circuit boards.

The Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Million Pearl Holdings Ltd., which is

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

1.

AR REEER
ARNBR_E—NFEAN\BRERSHES
NRERAFEEHREHEFMKNLAEREER
NE] o AN TR E E U A Clifton House,
P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° 7K A R] #) £ B & &
AR B NEEESEEI151-153REETTH
)809-810F °

TR ARETREFRERHEEREER -

ARATIRMDREEMEZSHBR AR ([HER
Frl)ERET - ELZRE - ARG ZEBERA
AIRGEERARANEBERRES MK
372 Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ©

Information about subsidiaries ERKMBARNER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RAFMBARKFBOT
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
SR BERITEBERE/
£ ERUYSES Sk BRAMRE AQAREEZEIN TRER
Direct Indirect
EE Gk
Yan Tat Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBARREE/BA 100%7T REER
Jumbo Height Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERBRAH RERARES/ER 1% REER
Vital Alliance Global Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
THRFABRAT EEERREE/ER E REER
Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
B (BB)EXERATA &R 5,000,000 7 ERARIERER
Yan Tat Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BENBBRAA &R 1,000,0007%7¢ EREIRIEEIR
RESEERERAT
352018 6 7



Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M AL

371 December 2018 —ZE—N\&E+_-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. R2IAREERER %)

(continued)

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
FmRL,/ BRTEBRE/
£ R ER MREMBE FAFEEEZESL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B &
Yan Tat International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
REARBRAF B 18T BEEHRIERR
Yan Tat Global Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Inactive
BERNARLA Bk 18T W REER
Yan Tat Printed Circuits PRC/Mainland China  HK$165,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "** of printed circuit boards
BESEER(RI)ARRA)"* * RE/ B 165,000,000 77T St RHEHRIE KR
Grace Yan Tat Electronics PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "#*
LREETF(RI)ERRR"* B/ E R ARE RENE
1,000,000 7T
Yan Tat Printed Circuit Technology PRC/Mainland China US$8,000,000 - 100 Inactive
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. " # *
BETHRMR(AR)BRAR" B/ 8,000,000 T VEER
Yan Tat Environmental Technology PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB43,100,000 - 100 Property holding
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. " # *
HRBERREEERAR M * RE /R E R AEH HEME
43,100,000 7T
Notes: B EE -
& Their statutory financial statements were not audited by Ernst & & ZEEEWBRRALEBLRKSTMEBAA DKL
Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young KB EHABENS —HRAAERZ -
global network.
° Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. RIEFEEEEMRIEBERE -
4 Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law. BIFFEDEREMRERAF -
v The English names of these companies represent the best effort y ZEARNEXEBBIARREREREAS NEES

made by management of the Company to directly translate their
Chinese names as these companies did not register any official

English names.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

fm R EL A
ZEVBHRRDREREGHMAS(HES
FHEIAE ) BEHEEEY B RS ER(FEH
BHmEEA]) (BEAERAMHRE LR - &
BEEN((FESTEL]) kaE)  FEQ
REFTRBAREE R BEDI N EREMR
gl

BR—REAVPEFAEGEERENYHEE
RIREYEARFEFTEIN - BHERERTIIRIEE
SERAEREL - RABEBIN - ZFEF MK N
AET(ABITD 2% MAEBEINEERE
N TAL

mERE
RAEMBRR BB AR A REME QR (GHE A
SEDBE_ZT-N\F+-_A=T—BLLHEE
Z IR o MB QR AR R B KSR
MER(BREEBLEER) EAKEH2ER
BHREBNTHEBAERRIZ BRI
KRB BHREHRITENES (A EERR
TRAEENATEREHRAMEB VB2
M) FEZLZERE - ANEISIEHIE -

HMARBEEXEEEFTINREERKSH
RENEMHBELERN - AAKERFEERES
BEHREHRNENREEE —VHBEEE
RER - B :

@ HERBHREMEKRESEANGORE:

(o) EMADRPEMELNEN : K&

@ AEENRERNMEERFE-
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2.1

2.2

70

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 1 and

HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new
and revised standards has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

The Group recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances in equity at
1 January 2018 and has not restated comparative
information. Therefore, the comparative information
for the corresponding period in 2017 which was
reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

Under HKFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. The classification is based on
two criteria: the Group’s business model for
managing the assets; and whether the instruments’
contractual cash flows represent “solely payments of
principal and interest” of the principal amount
outstanding.

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing HKAS 39's
incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9's
expected credit losses (“ECLs").

2.2 S BEREECZEE ()
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@)  (continued) (a)

2.2 S BERREEZ228 @)
(&)

DERETE(E)
R-Z—-N\F—-A—AREEESHER
FEIVRAENRAERRBETEMERE
REAFEIREMMAER ZMBBRNT -

Classification and measurement (continued)
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BAGERIE30% BRNBREEAEIR
Re-
Category Amount classification ECL Amount  Category
B
5l TESHE ENNE REFE TESHE £5l
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fzE FEL FET FET FET
Financial assets HBEE
Financial asset at fair value  $ZATEFA FvoC!'
through other HipzAMALN (equity)
comprehensive income BMHEE () NATER - 4153 - 4153 (Bg)
Available-for-sale investment ] ft €45 & (i) AFS? 4153 (4,153) = - NARER
Trade and bills receivables & ZEWGIER
R L&R? 240,630 - - 240,630 AC*
Financial assets included in -~ 3t ATEfTZUE - 3%
prepayments, deposits and 4 E A fE A
other receivables MBI EEE L&R 2,973 - - 2,973 AC
Pledged deposits and BEAERR
restricted cash TREFES L&R 34,425 - - 34,425 AC
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RBREZEY L&R 72,832 - - 72,832 AC
355,013 - - 355,013
Financial liabilities g SR
Trade and bills payables BHRNTER
ERNEE AC 125,636 - - 125,636 AC
Financial liabilities included st \EHERFE R
in other payables and T BRME
accruals 8 AC 25,004 - - 25,004 AC
Interest-bearing bank SEBEE
borrowings AC 185,390 - - 185,390 AC
Finance lease payables BARERNFE AC 7,593 - - 7,593 AC
343,623 - - 343,623

{ FVOCI: Financial asset at fair value through other 1 FVOCI i AT EFT AR 2 E R AN E E

comprehensive income

2 AFS: Available-for-sale investment 2 AFS: AJ &R &

g L&R: Loans and receivables 3 L&R: B3 I & W18

4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost g ACHREESHR ANGT R M S B E TS AR

Note: Bt 5

(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate its (i) ZER B BB 12 1 AT SR S EL SR BT AT R H 4R
previous available-for-sale investment as financial asset at BEERBRATEAARMEZEBANTEE
fair value through other comprehensive income. Ee

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss to be
recorded based on an ECL model either on a twelve-
month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group has
applied the simplified approach and recorded lifetime
ECLs for trade receivables at each reporting date.

No material opening impairment allowances under
HKAS 39 have been made to the ECL allowances
under HKFRS 9.

Impact on reserves
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves is as
follows:

22 B BERBEZSE (&)

(a)

(&)

A

FRVBREENEIRAE - AIFRA
FERABENES TAEER+ @A
AEEY 2 HEERBHEEBBERAR
fre ARBRAMENTTE  REMER
HiRsrE SR SUAN 2 EREEER -

BHREGTEREVREBTHREHRERE
B REERNEIRELNEREEEHE
BREBELENBORERS -

HiFmHTE
BEEREM B REERNE IRLFHEN
FEWT

Available-
for-sale Fair value
investment reserves
revaluation (without
reserve recyling)
AHEERE FEEDH
BEfhfRE AV ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance as at 31 December 2017 ER e ERE 39BN
under HKAS 39 —E—tF+-A=+—H
Eofet2S 944 T
Reclassification of financial asset from P EERHEERESH
available-for-sale investment to DEERAFER AEAM
financial asset at fair value through FENRENTEEE
other comprehensive income (944) 944
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under BEMBERELEREIFIE TR
HKFRS 9 —E-N\F-A—B0&EH
- 944
REKEERERAT

/3

F3R 2018
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

74

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in note 5 to the financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this
method, the standard can be applied either to all
contracts at the date of initial application or only to
contracts that are not completed at this date. The
Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts
that are not completed as at 1 January 2018. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

2w N o
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2.3

76

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about certain HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-to- use asset). The right-to-
use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-to-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-to-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-to-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-
of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before the date
of initial application. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of
initial application. During 2018, the Group has performed
a high-level assessment on the impact of adoption of
HKFRS 16.

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, at 31
December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$3,056,000. The Group
currently is still assessing whether, upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein will need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further detailed analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but
not limited to any amounts relating to leases of low value
assets and short term leases, other practical expedients and
reliefs chosen.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

23 CEMEERERNEBMBREER

-2
Z

( 4 )
=W

AEEFRMNETEVBHREERF 16578
BIEGR  BRABRRANRFARER/R-F
—NF—A—RERERNBYIERTIENT
- BTEEIILLBEN - B AKEE &
MRERANTAEREESERE17RE
BRIAEENELK - WA THENFREMNE

MEHR - EAREESREEABERTE
Win &% &R EMR B R BN R PR
MHERBNIAEMNIEFHEN K EE
1TA% - REBFEHHBRVIRER B HE
1218 A A& IE B A E AR ERIFT A FFRF R ©
R-ZF-N\F  AEECHRRBEYBRELE
AIE 16 M BEITRKF AT -

M ERRMERAAFEE R —NF
+ZA=+—H8  xKERETAIHELEHEE
BRMRRKER S L4 453,056,0008 7T °
ANEE B AT G R R AT S B %R S 2R
F16H%E BRI T EERAET
FAEEREEARE A ~NEBFIEE—
FTHBIN  UBTE FERNNERAEEER
HESE BEETRRILEEEEEHER
CHHEEMNSE - rEEMAITTREE S A REK
B e

ARG ERE 1 RETE ST EAFRIER]
FIAERHFESR - IERME  WAERYE
B - SRR R SR EEREFE—RAER
BHRENETBEAEERZFVBRRELH
RE - ALERBERK - ZFERIBBEAMR
BOARGEENHEREEN - A ERHAEEN
FRRLETETEEAEFELORE AW
HRBLBEX - ARERPE_T_FTF—A
—HEATEERAZFER] - RFETEATE
HAKEMBRRELTAEATE -

REKEEZERBRAR
372018 77



Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M AL

371 December 2018 —ZE—N\&E+_-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 1 —

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, investment properties, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBERE @)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties 22}y

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT AL AR B R 6 (B 5 s

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@ AR TATHERS mZeAL
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) EHl RSN ER

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEREEBERFEN X

(i) is a member of the key management personnel (iy RAEEXAEEFRANEEE
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; BEXE :

or 3
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) MRS TINEMERGNES :
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the () #%EBEALEEBR -—SEMNKE
same group; ~nals

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy ERRS—ER(HEZ—EBHNER
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or CIRN PN AR ES =N DR o)
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); ERAIHEERE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (iy ZERBEAEEAR-—F=704
the same third party; T

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy EBERA RF-FEBEMNAELXE
and the other entity is an associate of the third FS—ERBRZE=ERBNKE
entity; NG

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZERBAASENNMASEEFHE
for the benefit of employees of either the MNEBHESN =R LABERERS
Group or an entity related to the Group; FMEtEl

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEREH@IBEMIIALESSER
person identified in (a); ]

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @OEFMIALHZEZAEEERXR
influence over the entity or is a member of the FENIRZER(AZEBEBNER
key management personnel of the entity (or of AMEEERENKE : &

a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which (vii) ZEBIEEN —FoNEEHNE
it is a part, provides key management K B ARlMAEERAREEGTR
personnel services to the Group or to the AR EEEEABRT
parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.2% t0 4%
33'3%

9% to 18%
9% to 33"3%
30% to 33'/3%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and
leasehold improvements under construction, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for a property which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use is accounted for as
follows:

(@) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period
the change in use takes place; or

(b) any resulting increase in the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for that
property. The amount recognised in profit or loss
does not exceed the amount needed to restore the
carrying amount of the property to the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the property. Any remaining part of
the increase in the carrying amount is recognised in
other comprehensive income and increase the land
and building revaluation reserve within equity. On
subsequent disposal of the investment property, the
relevant portion of the land and building revaluation
reserve realised may be transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies

under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

(continued)

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies

under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends

on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

Available-for-sale financial investment of the Group is a
non-derivative financial asset in an unlisted equity
investment. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or

loss.

After initial recognition, the available-for-sale financial
investment is subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investment are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial asset in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold

the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investment (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

For the available-for-sale financial investment, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carlrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of printed circuit boards is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
printed circuit boards.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

(¢) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBERE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Determination of functional currency

In determining the functional currency of each entity of
the Group, judgement is required to determine and
consider the currency that mainly influences sales prices of
goods; the currency that mainly influences costs of
providing goods; the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated; and the currency in
which receipts from operating activities are usually
retained, etc. The functional currency of each entity is
determined based on management’s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities
operate. When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its judgement
to determine the functional currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

Transfer of construction in progress to property,
plant and equipment

Construction in progress is reclassified to appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use. Thereafter, depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost of
such property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. It requires management’s
judgement to determine when the project under
construction is substantially ready for its intended use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Measurement of unlisted equity investment at fair
value

The fair value of unlisted equity investment that is not
traded in an active market is estimated by management
with reference to valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer by using valuation technique
that requires various sources of information and
assumptions. The carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted
equity investment at 31 December 2018 was
HK$4,119,000 (2017: HK$4,153,000).

1 OO Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

3.

EESTTHERMAT @

Estimation uncertainty (continued) fhEr REABAEE & (&)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties REMEN AT EME

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including;

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences; and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2018 was HK$25,850,000 (2017:
HK$25,074,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement are given in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision and write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories to determine whether any write-
down of inventories to net realisable values is required
after considering, inter alia, ageing analysis of the Group’s
inventories and subsequent sales made and materials used.
Write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable values of inventories decline below
their carrying amounts. Net realisable value of inventories
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates
are made with reference to the current market conditions
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of a similar nature. Actual selling prices and
saleability/usage of goods/materials might be different
from estimations and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in the estimations.

Provision for income taxes

Provision for income tax is made based on the taxable
income for the period as determined by the Group. The
determination of taxable income involves the exercise of
judgement on interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations. The amounts of income tax and hence profit
or loss could be affected by any interpretations and
clarifications which the tax authorities may issue from time
to time.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

3.

EESHER AT @

Estimation uncertainty (continued) st FHABEE (8)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills BRESZRFIREKEENTESHEEEER
receivables v

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade and bills receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax in
respect of certain unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China to
the extent that the directors are of the opinion that it
would be probable for distribution in the foreseeable
future. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities that should
be recognised. Further details are contained in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition of deferred tax assets primarily involves
management judgement and estimations regarding the
taxable profits of the entities in which the losses arose.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group focuses primarily on the manufacturing and
selling of printed circuit boards during the year.
Information reported to the Group's chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, focuses on the operating results
of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are
integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

4,

RETHER

AEBENFATBEINHERFENRER
o MAREEREERRAERNER (FIE
BRAERKRBRME) FTRAKENEBELE
¥5 AATNKEEGAER  UEBILEDE
MEERAIHE® - Bt XEEFNLLEHHE

%o

(a) REMBEFHYEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FERT

Mainland China A [ A 4t

Europe B

Hong Kong B

North America JEEM

Asia (except Mainland China and SN (MEFEREAM EES)
Hong Kong)

Africa FEM

Oceania KAEM

South America 7 M

327,809
168,938
20,411
52,872

165,022
30,850
96

8

766,006

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers who placed the orders.

Non-current assets

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET

268,345
152,485
23,560
56,036

101,242
31,732
136

36

633,572
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(b) FARBEE

2018
—B-N\F
HK$°000
FET

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China A [ A At

1,717
428,320

430,037

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes a financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (2017: an available-for-sale investment) and
deferred tax assets.

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

1,042
448,763

449,805

BlERBEEERDENEEMELE
5 BABER-HERAVEFARGCEE
WHENHBEE(—T 15 —AAH#

HERE) MEREREERE °

REREEZRAERAA
F3R 2018

103



Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M AL

371 December 2018 —ZE—\#E+_HA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

FHETEEFHNESR
KEEETEEPHME (EAEEE 10% 3 IA
B #EmmT

2018 2017
2= SR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T

Customer A BEA
Customer B =ZFEB

237,112 191,217
95,375 82,362

332,487 273,579

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information
The Group's entire revenue of goods transferred is
recognised at a point in time.

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of printed circuit boards

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the printed circuit boards and payment is generally
due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for
new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

1 04 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

Wi - EAUA R W ER

REEFEHNZBA

(i) AHUAER
AEERMEEEBNEMRARE K/
BHHERR o

(i) MEITEH
AR AEERITEBNEMBANT -

HHE ENfR B EEIR
BITEERRENRIEEEAR R ER - i
FBE BRI 30290 A AR (—K
ABNRBANELERIN)



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R BT

31 December 2018 —Z—\#E+_-HA=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue from contracts with KEEFEHZWA
customers
Sale of goods HEEMm

Other income Hig A

Bank interest income RITH B WA

Rental income Hae A

Government grants” R e Bl

Others H

Gains g

Fair value gains on investment properties
Gains on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

BREMEZ 2 FENRE
HEME - BE KRB
B A

Sales of scraps HEEMR
Foreign exchange gain, net b R F 8
A Government grants have been received from certain government A

authorities of the PRC in recognition of the Group’s efforts in
environmental awareness and protection and technological

development.

ek - HAUA R W (4)
REFEFEHZBA ()
Was  ARARBESTEIIMT

2018
—2-N\E
HK$°000
TR

766,006

568
200
9,659
184

10,611

2,001

310
966
4,445

7,722

18,333

RESEERERAT
&35 2018

2017
—TE—+F
HK$'000
FHET

633,572

258
281
885
211

1,635

4,211

270
1,238

5,719

7,354

BEATHRERABMBHBAHEY  ARGAREE
RETHARGERBMBERETEANE S -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBOBRBADERNE MG GEA) -
(crediting):
2018 2017
=S = tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F#ET FET
Cost of inventories sold"® BEEFER A 587,117 511,450
Minimum lease payments under REMENRKEHES
operating leases 1,715 2,143
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR BN & 2,105 2,023
Depreciation e 13 28,070 26,960
Amortisation of land lease payments T Hb A & ROR 15 249 243
Employee benefit expense® (including EERMFEXC(BERE
directors’ and chief executive’s R EE8MEE RITH
remuneration as disclosed in note 8): BHEME) -
Wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses, I&- %4 2B
commission and benefits in kind T - e REWET 107,249 92,603
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTH SR
(defined contribution schemes) (EBEHEHE) 213 240
Other employee benefits HiniE B8 7 9,639 9,079
117,101 101,922
Research and development costs# HIT R RAC A 11,261 8,299
Write-off of items of property, plant VI - BB REHEEE 13
and equipment gz A
Reversal of write-down of inventories to BOMBFESR
net realisable value” A IR FE" (242)
Fair value gains on investment properties &% A FENKZ 5 (4,211)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables E 5 EWRIE K& 19
FEWE IR A -
Impairment of other receivables H A FE R IR R (B 20 112
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE &
plant and equipment* IH B 2 ek 5 (270)
Foreign exchange differences, net* ME W, 2 R RE 535
[ These gains are included in “Other income and gains” and the * RSB E WSt A TEMBA RS | - e

losses are included in “General and administrative expenses”, as
appropriate, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

| Part of the employee benefit expense is included in “Cost of
inventories sold” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversal of write-down of inventories to net realisable value is

included in “Cost of inventories sold” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

i Research and development costs are included in “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

AlFEA =R RATREX (@A) °

Q Rz BER  BAEREBMASEA
I

[BEEFEK

g REBERE  BEMRTERETERMESAEE

FERA] -

i Rz BaER  MIRRERKAFTAN—

Sl

MR RATER R
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WERAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Interest on: AT EIENFE
Bank loans and trust receipt loans RITER RETRIEE R 7,936 7,134
Finance leases MERE 163 403
8,099 7,537
Less: Interest capitalised* B BAREFE - (29)
7,508
@ The borrowing costs had been capitalised at the rate of 6.54% per 3 ZE L FNEREKAIRFRE6.54% ER1L -
annum for the year of 2017.
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S 8. EERITHHARTH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, RAREE A PR S EmARA(T EMRAL) - BELQ
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of AMEBIZE383(1)@) * (b) * (QRMERESR R
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), BEEMmER)BNE _SIHRBENEFEEER
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong TTHBEEFMEINT
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Fees £ZH 1,428 1,428
Other emoluments: E A -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EEREYER 4,820 4,964
Commission e 6,598 3,146
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET IR 18 33
11,436 8,143
12,864 9,571
RESEERERAT
3% 2018 1 07
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEBERMTHBHAREM =)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FARNBINTEE2ERUT

during the year were as follows:

2018 2017

=E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming KA A 204 204

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu [GES 204 204

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2B %4 204 204

612 612

There were no other emoluments payable to the FAEEN B IENTTE F 2 H 5 B
independent non-executive directors during the year (ZZ—tF:8)-

(2017: Nil).
1 08 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive

8. EERITHARFME
(b) BITES  FUTESRITHAR

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind Commission contributions remuneration
- 11951 Eike
ER ENFE e ST st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT THET
2018 “E-N\F
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BEB L -
Mrs. Chan Yung BRELT -
Mr. Chan Yan Wing Bakdka 6,598
6,598
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong? BRESTE!
2017 “B-tF
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BRECE A+ 204 1,764 - S 1,968
Mrs. Chan Yung BREZL 204 1,358 = = 1,562
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong* BRE LA 170 865 - 15 1,050
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BRRK LA 204 977 3,146 18 4,345
782 4,964 3,146 33 8,925
Non-executive director: FHTEE
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong? BRE LA 34 - - - 34
816 4964 3,146 33 8,959
g Mr. Chan Wing Yin is also the chief executive officer of the & FRECE LT RA R RITIRAER ©
Company.
f Mr. Chan Yan Kwong has been redesignated from an & REKEEEZE—+tF+— A —HERAHT

executive director to a non-executive director since 1

November 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

EFEHERENTESF -

FABBLFBEEEHITRARA LK
R EA R -

REKEEZRERAR

&35 2018
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hEESFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FANhEE=aTMNEERE=2(ZF—+tF:
three directors (2017: two directors), details of whose WMB)EE  EHFMWFBHN EXWES &8 T
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the ME(ZE—tF: ZR)EaFMEE BIIFEE
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: NRIEF N TEAER) RFRBOF B S
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director W

nor the chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-—N\E —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « JZBI R EWFIZR 2,500 4,373
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 190 149
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIE R 36 50
2,726 4,572

The number of non-director and non-chief executive GHEBERUTSHENSRSTNES GEEE LI

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within TTRAREL) ABETINT

the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHE
2017
—FT—+tF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,00078 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000 % 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2 2,000,000 % 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T % 2,500,000 % 7T 1
3
The non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FEERFTHABNRDFMESMEAE
employees are also members of senior management of the EeREEBAKE -
Group.
1 1 O Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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10.

INCOME TAX 10. FRSHt
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEBMSRIDIRFAREBEE NG ERD
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits HAE16.5% (ZZ—H4F 1 16.5%)HIEkHE -
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits H i [& & FE SR B s M 18 B AR IR AN & (B 8
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of FrE Rl EEEMBRITH R E -
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
The provision for land appreciation tax has been estimated T H IR E R 2 BB R A B BUE G AR B AT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC B REEL AT o T HIRERIRIREBERRE
laws and regulations. Land appreciation tax has been HETRAMNRBR%E  RWEERE 2B ER &
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation K
value, with certain allowable deductions.
All subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are FR AEERPBEA AR BQRAR
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard rate of 25% (=T —+4F : 25%) MIZERKHRZH
25% (2017: 25%) during the year, except for a subsidiary TEMSHR - EASE B AREFRBEAMD
of the Group which qualified as a High and New FemM BTt ENER  RENZRELFHE
Technology Enterprise in Mainland China and a lower PRC EMEBERI5% (ZT—HF - 15%) EF
corporate income tax rate of 15% (2017: 15%) has been
applied for the year.
2018 2017
=Z2—N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &/
Charge for the year FAZH 481 37
Overprovision in prior years BT EEBRERE (28) (31)
Current — Mainland China BNHE — B Aty
Charge for the year FAZ M 10,119 5,789
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREARE (753) (864)
Deferred (note 26) EIE (F95E26) 13,338 40
Total tax charge for the year FAMBZ HETE 23,157 4,971
REKBEZERAERAH 1 1 1

F3f 2018
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

e

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in which
the principal place of business of the Company and certain
of its major subsidiaries is located, to the tax charge at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate,
are as follows:

Profit before tax B B AT

RE A RS R E
AT E RN TR E

Tax at the Hong Kong
statutory tax rate
Effect of different tax rates for

specific entities in the PRC TE
Adjustment in respect of current gt i@ 7 HA RS 5 AN BR R TH AY
tax of previous periods R
Income not subject to tax BRI Z WA
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ “RE[ 02 % H

& B 1 HAE 2 B IR B 18

AEEHEKE AT
A 0K A B IR R 5% A

Tax losses utilised from previous
periods

Effect of withholding tax at 5%
on the distributable profits of

the Group’s PRC subsidiary HRIERMIBES
0%
Tax losses not recognised RERBIBEE
Additional deduction for research #7% K 3% & B AN 58 9036
and development costs
Land appreciation tax T IR ER
Others HAh

FR&% (40)
BARRRETEIEMNB AR TR 2 E WA
RE B HATE B R 5 B AR BB AR R e i
FERERBEAENORENYE - LERK
KAMEERE) BEBEBRNEREHETINT -

10.

BAREBEBRV R ER
BiIA

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FET
81,550 29,246
13,456 4,826 16.5
(1,294) (549) (1.9)
(781) (895) (3.1
(372) (663) (2.3)
540 1,401 4.8
(384) - -
87 0.3
(1,375) (4.7)
2,218 7.6
(79) (0.2)
4,971 17.0

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended to declare a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2017: Nil) per ordinary share, equivalent to a
total amount of HK$14,400,000 (2017: Nil), for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$58,393,000
(2017: HK$24,275,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 240,000,000 (2017: 240,000,000) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these
years.

11.

12.

BRE
EEeRERREEE T \F+_A=1+—
HIFFEMARBERESREBR6OBL(ZE
—tF F) 4 FEHEE R 14,400,000 (=
T—tF:F)o

AEEMRBERBREAFARBDRRRERE
PERBERG LUK - FAMEER -

RAREEREERAEAREERER

FARRREREEFEABRGEZERELRR
FEBIRBEARAERAESZFEABGEER
%% 758,393,000 7T (=& —+ 4 : 24,275,000
BL)IRAFEERITETARMNEFLHE
240,000,000 % ( =& — + 4F : 240,000,000 f% )
R

HRAAEERHE—_Z—N\FR-_ZT—tF+=
A=t RLEEYEAZARHERE 2
TEER  HIEREEEEEZEFEESZ
BREABNESRIEHRE -

REKEEZERBRAR
372018
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2018 —E-0\%
t=A=t-A
At31December 2017 andat ~ R-F—+%
1 January 2018: TZA=+-8k
“F AR
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
Net carrying amount REFE

At 1 January 2018, net of

R-E-N\§-A-R"

Land and
buildings

1HRET
HKS000

TiEn

207,500
(28,274)

179,226

accumulated depreciation Bk EiE 179,226
Additions NE
Transfers E
Transfer from deposits for EREBENE BER
purchases of items of property,  REERERS
plant and equipment (note 16)  (BfzE 16)
Disposals irk (82)
Depreciation provided ENTERE
during the year (7.520)
Exchange realignment ERRE (7,966)
At 31 December 2018, netof ~ R=B—/\E
accumulated depreciation +-A=1+-8"
MR RHITE 163,658
At 31 December 2018; RZE-\E
TERE=
Cost B 197,881
Accumulated depreciation ZiHNE (34223)
Net carrying amount REFE 163,658
1 14 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018

13. 1% BERRE

Furniture,

Construction Leasehold Plantand fixtures and
in progress  improvements machinery  equipment
e E%

EEIR HEXE HEREE  KERRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR AR

71,688 18,636 307,786 23,983
- (14,802) (154,498) (19,802)

71,688 3,834 153,288 4,181
153,288

22,345
206

7342

- (1:337) (16,681) (1.241)
(3:293) (170) (8.271) (156)

158,229

19,014 321,710 23,407
(15,451) (163,481) (20,226)

3,563 158,229 3,181

Motor
vehicles

it
HKS000
TER

9,010
(7.677)

1333

(1,291)
(22)

9,790
(8,031)

1,759

Total

st
HKS000
TER

638,603
(225,053)

413,550

413,550
25,814

7342
(82)

(28,070)
(19,878)

398,676

640,088
(241,412)

398,676
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BERRXE®)
(continued)
Furniture,
landand  Construction Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings in progress  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
RE EE
THRET EEIR BEEE HEREE  XERRE g &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL TER TAR TER TER TE
31 December 2017 - S 3
+ZA=1-H
At 1 January 2017: RZZ—t5-A-A:
Cost WA 178,401 80,813 16,392 275,526 23,577 8,990 583,699
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (19,440) = (12,869) (129,914) (18,086) (6,865) (187,174)
Net carrying amount REE 158,961 80,813 3,523 145,612 5,491 2,125 396,525
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZ2-+4§-A-RH-
accumulated depreciation EMBREZNE 158,961 80,813 3,523 145,612 5,491 2,125 396,525
Additions AE = 1,997 855 4822 123 231 8,028
Transfers & 15,998 (16,263) 265 = = = =
Transfer from deposits for EYEREYE BER
purchases of items of property,  REER KRS
plant and equipment (note 16)  (fitz 16) - - - 8,632 - = 8,632
Disposals e - - - (858) (116) 41) (1,019)
Wirite-off bk - - - (7) - = (71)
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (7,207) - (1,046) (16,067) (1,630) (1,010) (26,960)
Exchange realignment e 11,474 5141 237 11,218 BilS 28 28411
At 31 December 2017, netof ~ RZZT—+4F
accumulated depreciation T=REr=E
BB EHE 179,226 71,688 3,834 153,288 4,181 1333 413,550
At 31 December 2017 WZZE—+F
T=RE =
Cost KA 207,500 71,688 18,636 307,786 23,983 9,010 638,603
Accumulated depreciation ZitmE (28,274) 5 (14,802) (154,498) (19,802) (7,677) (225,053)
Net carrying amount REFE 179,226 71,688 3,834 153,288 4,181 1333 413,550

The net carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases included in the
total amounts of plant and machinery and motor vehicles
at 31 December 2018 were HK$12,636,000 (2017:
HK$14,004,000) and HK$117,000 (2017: HK$828,000),
respectively.

FAZE-NF+_A=+—"BEHREER#ENR
RERBEZAEERERERAEREZ2VE - K
ERREEREEFED R A12,636,0008T(=ZF
—-+t4F : 14,004,0007%7T) & 117,000 T (==
—-4F : 828,000/87T) °

REKEEZERBRAR
372018
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

116

(continued)

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group's leasehold
land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$185,652,000 (2017:
HK$186,640,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

Certain of the Group’s idle building structures situated in
Mainland China with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately HK$0 at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$116,000) do not have building ownership certificates
because they were either built on land where the Group
does not have the land use right certificates or being built
without obtaining the construction works planning permit
and construction works commencement permit. So far, the
Group has not received any formal removal notice. In the
opinion of the directors, the risk of the relevant
government authorities imposing a fine on the Group or
confiscating the building structures is relatively low.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

13.

M BERRZRE®)

N-ZE—-N\E+-A=+—H ~AEEETHE
Tt EEFARAEEREIREERFEA
185,652,000 7T ( — & —+ 4 : 186,640,000 7
T0) B DERAEBEERN —RIRITRE
(FF5E24) °

MN-ZE—-NE+-A=+—8 A&EBAETM
R BRI EEEEYNAREFENBT
—ZE—+F 116,000 7T) I EFE E A R
F o REAEHMEEMENAEB T ELFER
REFENMMR Y F o SR RN E BRI EIGE
RIEBEFAIERBELETRELHAE  MA
EEESVERETXNBRBN - EFER45
BB AEBEAT A TRALSE
SRR AT RIK -
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEWHE
2017
—T—tfF
HK$'000
T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREE 19,351

Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EFHE R FEE (FiiEe)

(note 6) 4,211
Exchange realignment P 5 3R 2 1,512
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZHA=+—HHEREE 25,074

The Group's investment properties consist of residential
properties and a commercial property in the PRC.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2018 based on valuations performed by Unicorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$25,850,000. Each
year, the Group's chief financial officer decides, after
approval from the directors, to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's investment properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s chief
financial officer has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a year
when the valuations are performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

One of the investment properties consisting of a
commercial property is leased to a third party under an
operating lease, further summary details of which are
included in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2018, an investment property of the
Group with a carrying amount of HK$6,448,000 (2017:
HK$6,484,000) was pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

REENREMEBETHENEEYER A
[Ehik/EN

NEENREYWER-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—
HiIRERBY EEA AR GEMSZERA LT
HE R A FTT 2 (E1E 25,850,000 T &= #1h
B - BFEEEENEEL  NEBYBRERTE
HNERFE{ERD AR - AR EAREBIIRE WERNINE
HETIE - BURERSEMIS MG B2 . By
HERELHFEEEER - FXFEATHHKSF
EHERBENMITHER  AEBMKALS
MEEBRRLHESHOEREGEMIETR °

Hh—AlRZAAYRERNREEREE
MOBET—RE=T7  ERNBREHCHAL
BMBIMKRME326)

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H AEBEBEEE
56,448,000 (= —+4F : 6,484,000/857T)
Z—HEEMESRIBIEANEBER —KIR
TERZER(HFE24) -

REKEEZERBRAR
372018
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWME(E)
Fair value hierarchy REEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRAPEEEREMENDTEFEER

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Fair value measurement using

ERUTRABENAFEE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERTE EARTEE EARFEE
HwE WA WARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (BE=#) (=) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT TET TET
Recurring fair value FUTEERE R
measurement for: N SR
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+=ZA=+—H”
Commercial property [ElEkES 6,448 6,448
Residential properties EEME 19,402 19,402
25,850 25,850
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—H~
Commercial property [ElikES - - 6,484 6,484
Residential properties EEME - - 18,590 18,590
- = 25,074 25,074
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - B-REE_RAREREQNTEHE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no WEY  E=RTEESAREL(ZE—+F:
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). M) o
1 1 8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWEH)
DNFERER(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

DEEATEERPE=FANATEFSNYH

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: R -

Commercial Residential
property properties
mAYE T=EPE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—tF—A—HBNEKREE 5,970 13,381
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RIEBERPERN A FE AR
recognised in profit or loss JRRE 92 4,119
Exchange realignment PEE 5, 3 =X 422 1,090
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=+—HBK
and 1 January 2018 —E-)\F—-HA—H8EKEE 6,484 18,590
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RERP R A FEFHE RS
recognised in profit or loss TR RE 272 1,729
Exchange realignment RS (308) (917)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\F+-_A=+—HH
FREE 6,448 19,402
RESEERERAT
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEWEH)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and LTREEMEGREMANGERTREEZS
the key inputs to the valuation of the investment AR E -
properties:
Significant
Investment properties Fair value Valuation unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy technique input Range
rEBREN BEAREEHE
REW*E DNERERR fRE T A BE Ef
Commercial property Level 3 Sales comparison Estimated price per RMB28,009 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB31,000
(2017: RMB26,877
to RMB31,000)
AR BIRRE 2 R F=R HELEUE ¥k AR¥28,009 TE
HEHE AR#¥31,00070
(ZT—+%F:
AR 26,877 &
AR¥31,0007T)
Residential properties Level 3 Sales comparison  Estimated price per RMB37,500 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB40,887
(2017: RMB33,026
to RMB39,662)
AR BIARE 2 (W% FE=& HE LB ¥ HK AR 37,500 L&
HEHER ANE# 40,887 7T
—E—t5F:
AR¥33,026 TE
AR#¥39,6627T)

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated price per
square metre in isolation would result in a significant
increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. The investment properties are valued using the
sales comparison method having regard to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market. The
valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BT tBEERE

2018 2017

—2-N\F —F£F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREE 5,325 5,211
Recognised during the year (note 6) FAREER(M3E6) (249) (243)
Exchange realignment B 5, 5 =X (237) 357
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HMEAE 4,839 5,325

Current portion included in prepayments, & ATER A - 124 & E b REUL

deposits and other receivables IR BIEIER 5 (240) (252)
Non-current portion FERNERER 4,599 5,073

16. DEPOSITS FOR PURCHASES OF ITEMS OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. BEYWX BMERRBEENESE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FE T FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEREE 6,108 8,545
Additions NE 1,934 5,704
Transfer to property, plant EREYE - WE R
and equipment 13 (7,342) (8,632)
Exchange realignment RS (84) 491
Carrying amount at 31 December A+ = A=+—HMKREE 616 6,108

FHEEBES THSARE(HAREEESR
BB mitERE -

The carrying amount represented deposits paid for
purchases of certain machinery and equipment for the
Group's manufacturing operation.

RESEERERAT
&35 2018
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17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

17.

BAVPESARMEERENMEE
E/MHEEERE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 322X F{EFIEMIE FHIRERE

4,153

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers the investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross gain
in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investment
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to

AR AR E T AT IR T AR A TERA
HipzmERe - RRRARERRREBRE L
5 o

BE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—HIEE  RHM
2HERARARETHEERERIBOB YR
#111,000%7T °

HK$111,000.
18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
2018 2017
—2-N\fF =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Raw materials R 18,938 24,006
Work in progress TR 10,802 13,285
Finished goods X G 31,859 31,143
61,599 68,434
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESERFIEREKRERE

2018 2017
—B—N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET

222,699 208,606
36,844 35,106

259,543 243,712
(3.839) (3,082)

255,704 240,630

Trade receivables H 5 IR
Bills receivable PR
Impairment DERIEL

1 22 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EZRUHREREBWRRE (&)
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly AEBREZFHXSERTBRIESE -
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in BPRATRERNRGRIN c REBBHAEEER
advance may be required. The Group maintains a defined FOBPRARPEHBREAMNE A AER —
credit policy and credit periods are usually granted ranging ZENEAAMEER - AEEHBHREBEIK
from one to four months from the month-end of date of BHRSFERER  UREREEERR - ahE
invoice to customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict BETHEZARER  ER LMERRREE
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit ZEGRERERERERRZEE TR
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior Bl MAEBUVESANEZEEFRER - ~EEH
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact IR E B 5 WA R KRB EE EME
that the Group's trade and bills receivables related to a AR E MBI HE - B 5 FEWERIE R FE
large amount of diversified customers, there is no ERATETE o
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivables. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at RBEER - BHEEHEBERERZBRIREES
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date HE R MBREEREENREDTHIIMT
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:
2018 2017
—'-N\Ff —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Within one month —EAR 95,114 83,381
One to two months —ZMEA 76,157 84,468
Two to three months MZE=1EA 56,923 51,193
Over three months HBiBE=1EA 27,510 21,588
255,704 240,630
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of B o RWHIERERZEENBEREZSHHD
trade and bills receivables are as follows: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
At 1 January w—HA—H 3,082 2,880
Impairment loss, net (note 6) B EEF R (MiFEe) 898 i
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (141) 202
At the end of year FR 3,839 3,082

REREEZRAERAA
F3R 2018
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124

Impairment under HKAS39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measured based on incurred credit
losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 December 2017, was a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$3,082,000 with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$3,082,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables related to
customers that were in default in payments or in financial
difficulties and none of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BEFRWHREREBRERE &)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended BE-—Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFER
31 December 2018 BEEBMBRELELEIRHNRE
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REERZRE BN BRBEEETRED
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit - L EEBEEEE - BHEDERZER
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for BHREUEBBEANES o HAR A e AR E
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss TE o ZETE A AR AR IIEL R - EHERR
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted BEUARRRE B SEBART S - BN
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and RARREEGHTEANEGEREBRITFFER -
supportable information that is available at the reporting —RmE - ESERKFENERZE N EREG
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of —ETLAMEE - BN RBIFITIERRR
future economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk TXEIAAREERSHASEEE S BB
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a BRENEEAHNEERBRMER
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZB—-NE+=-A=+—H
Past due
k]
Credit-
Less than 1to3 3to12  impaired
Current 1 month months months receivables Total
EERE
BE SMMER 1E3fA 31288 2 EWEE A&t
Expected credit loss rate  FEHIEE/E
BR 0.30% 0.21% 0.50% 3.68% 100% 1.48%
Gross carrying amount BEREE
(HK$'000) (%) 218,697 31,692 4,996 1,113 3,045 259,543
Expected credit losses HHEEER
(HK$'000) (FAm) 661 67 25 41 3,045 3,839

BE-_Z—tHF+-A=1+—HILFER
BEREBESERZE39FHRE

SFALME S RRFBRERE(BRESE2:
EAEIFER —_E—tFF+_A=+—HER
EELEEEBEFZ2)FAENEREER S EKR
FXIE 3,082,000 B T BB e - M ERIRAEE A
3,082,00078 T °

B 5 2 R (E & B 5 8 Wk TR B2 3 R A SRR B R
PRRENZTFAR - A EEYIAR TR
[ o
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19.

20.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment under HKAS39 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
31 December 2017 that were past due but not individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39
is as follows:

19. ESRRARERENREE (&)
BE-Z—+tF+-A=t—HLEEER
BEBESERNEI9HMRE(E)
R-E—+F+_A=+—BREEEGE
BII 55 39 5% B 6 BR1E 30 Sk (A B ok S B2 AR VR E Y
B 5 FENCRIE R R Z R T E T

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET

Less than one month past due
One to three months past due
Over three months past due

wE DR —1E A 19,819
BAP—==@A 4,325
BEER B =1EA 150

24,294

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REBRTARBRENEYHRLESZEZLZ TR
BRE - WFA A IR RDER

ERHERRENERIARZEZEBIZFPE
B RERAEERERIFEGCE - RIBBERL
B ARREERA/RET B G ERIE 395
BAZSERIENERE  AAEEERY
BEAEE  MAFEKNERAT2HEE -

20. FEMARIE  RERHMEWRE

2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FHET
Current BNHA

Prepayments TERTRIE 4,273
Deposits and other receivables e & E bW R IE 2,973
7,246

Non-current JEBNHA
Deposits Re =

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no history of default.

i EEREARIRNE - DA ESRIENEE
R R W RCE M R GRIR R B

RESEERERAT
F 3R 2818 125
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21.

126

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH

RERAEEEY  REEFERRE
PR&HIRE

Be RIRTTESH

Cash and bank balances

Pledged deposits and restricted cash 2 3EIRFR R TR HIH S

Less: yeAe
Pledged time and bank deposits
for certain banking facilities
Pledged bank deposits for certain

bills payable
Restricted cash

EHRRITER

RITER
SRR

ETRITRE 2 CHEA
ETRNREZCEA

Cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated
statement of financial position

R MREEHFEY

AR MBI ERM S 2

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —+t5F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5T FET FET
135,876 72,832

31,621 34,425

167,497 107,257

24 (31,303)
22 (2,601)
(521)

135,876 72,832

At 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances, and
pledged deposits and restricted cash of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to
HK$38,986,000 (2017: HK$14,697,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances, pledged
deposits and restricted cash are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Restricted cash of the Group represents a special fund
granted by a PRC government authority and deposited into
a designated bank account in relation to the Group’s
purchases of certain energy saving and sewage treatment
machines. Such fund will only be released to the Group’s
use upon fulfilment of certain attaching conditions and is
not immediately available for use in the Group’s business.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 AEERARE
(TAREDFENE S RIBITE#H LB RFT
AN ZRHIRE 538,986,000 ( —F—+F :
14,697,000/870) - AR S EREREHM
B WRE P B R 2 INE B IR GBI A K &
B EELRMNESERTE  ~AEECEERBA
EREETINEES Z2RITBARKERAR
fth & HE o

RITNSIZET B RITE A R FREUZ B F X H
B Ri74%  CEREREXRERSEFR
BRI R T HE ARCERAVIRTT ©

AEENZRHIBSETERNE RHAEE
BEETHEIIKEEERMRLNERIE
& HERIERERTFEO - AAESERERS
THRERTEERTAKREAREZANERL
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. ESRAREREMNRE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Trade payables =) ANE 122,100 112,814
Bills payable ADET 2,873 12,822
124,973 125,636
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RBEHRR - BFRNFBRENRBEREER
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is HESRBRER DA T T -
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Within three months =@AN 108,442 109,596
Three to six months =ZEXEAR 15,734 14,574
Over six months HBiE7NE A 797 1,466
124,973 125,636
The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing B RNFTBRREEN - FrBRBERERA
and are normally settled within three months from the AP RET=@EA RN -
month-end of the date of invoice.
At 31 December 2018, bills payable with an aggregate RZZE-NF+ZA=+—08 KELEAR
carrying amount of HK$776,000 (2017: HK$10,992,000) 776,000 77T (ZZF —+4F : 10,992,000/ 7T ) &)
were secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$156,000 JE A+ Z ¥ 2 $156,0008 T( = T — £ F:
(2017: HK$2,601,000). 2,601,000/ 7T ) #) 2 M MIRITIF AR o
REKBEZERAERAH
F% 2018 1 27
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23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HttEAFRERESERA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHT

Current ENER

Other payables H T RUR 25,724 14,118

Accruals ezt & 48,465 42,206

Deferred income” FEIEUT A 1,060 1,111

75,249 57,435

Non-current FEENHA

Deferred income” EEHAN 9,854 11,440

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HMEMRIBER TR FHBRA=MEA -

average term of three months.

& Deferred income mainly represented (i) special fund of " BEWAEEHE : () PEIBTE BRI KEE R
HK$4,529,000 (2017: HK$4,887,000) granted by a PRC government BT 2 BB E£4,529,0008 T ( —F—+H 4 : 4,887,000
authority in relation to the construction of a sewage treatment BIT) 5 R(i) R BB AL EEE R T8 5 KE
facility; and (i) a special fund of HK$287,000 (2017: HK$317,000) BHER T 2B RES287,0008 T(ZF— L4
granted by a PRC government authority in relation to the Group's 317,000 7T) ° ZBELE WAL BREYE - BB &K
purchase of certain energy saving and sewage treatment machines. B2 TEEIR A BN B S TR o

The deferred income is recognised in profit or loss over the expected
useful lives of the relevant property, plant and equipment.

1 28 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. FHESBITER
2018 2017
—E-N\E I
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (p.a.) Maturity>  HK$'000 rate (p.a.) Maturity? ~ HK$'000
EHETIR HHA? TEx ANERE A#Ar FARL
Current ED&5
Secured trust receipt loans due for repayment LIBOR' + 1.5% 52,821 LIBOR" + 1.5% 2018 47184
within one year® or HIBOR® + 1.5% to 1.75% or HIBOR®
+1.625% t0 1.75%
BR-ENERNEERETRBERS LIBOR! + 1.5% UBOR'+15%%2 —Z—\F
g, HIBOR? + 1.5% 1.75%, = HIBOR?
+1.625% £ 1.75%
Secured bank loans due for repayment within one LIBOR' + 2.5%, LIBOR' + 2.5%, 2018 31,663
year which contain repayment on HIBOR? + 2% t0 2.5%, HIBOR® +2.1%, or
demand clauses® or PRIME* - 2.25% PRIME* - 2.25%
BR-FNEENEERRTER LIBOR' + 2.5%, LBOR'+2.5%, —ZE—N\&
(FBREKEREN)S HIBOR® + 2% £ 2.5%, HIBOR + 2.1%,
L PRIME* -2.25% 3 PRIME - 2.25%
Secured bank loans due for repayment after one LIBOR' + 2.5%,  2019-2021 LIBOR" +2.5%,  2018-2021 56,111
year which contain repayment HIBOR® + 2%, or HIBOR® + 2%, or
on demand clauses® PRIME* - 2.25% PRIME* - 2.25%
AR-FRERNEERRTER LIBOR' +2.5%, —E-7FZ LIBOR' +25%, —E—)\&%
(HBRERERREN)S HIBOR® +2%, =B=—f HBOR® +2%, —B=—%
g PRIME* - 2.25% o PRIME* - 2.25%
Secured bank loans due for repayment within PBCBLR® + 0.91% 2019 63,207 PBC BLR® + 1.36% 2018 46,619
one year’ to 1.78%
BAR-FNEENEERRTER PBCBLR*+0.91% =—ZE-hf# PBCBLR*+136% —ZE—N\&
£1.78%
Current portion of secured bank loans due for N/A QOver-5-year 2018 3,813
repayment after one year’ PBC BLR® or 6.54%
AN —FRERNERARITERART 7 TR BERFE —T-N\F
PBC BLR®36.54%
Total #5t 178,539 185,390
BEEEZERERAF
wm20s 129
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24,

—E-NF+=ZA=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

1

2

N o v s ow

London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR")

Based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out in the loan
agreement/bank facilities letter

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")

Standard Chartered Bank Prime Rate (“PRIME")

People’s Bank of China benchmark lending rate (“PBC BLR")
Denominated in HK$ or US$

Denominated in RMB

Certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements contain
repayment on demand clauses and the corresponding
bank loans have been classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clauses and based on
the maturity terms of these loans, the interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group are repayable:

24,

FTERITER @)

<~ o ou s w

PRI RIZEHF S ([LIBOR])
ERERERITBREEHEEEERE S

HARITRZER S (THBOR])

BT IRITRAEEFIE ([PRIME])

B A RIRITEEEEF|E ([PBC BLR])
AT ETTSIE

DARS|E

REBETRITERBARBRZRERGER
MERRITERENGEEMBRRARIBRR
PAME - WA REMRERERERZFER
REZEEFNEHHR - AL 25 BRITE

B

WA

BTRESR :

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHETT

Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

—FR
FF

E-EFRF(BREEMT)

129,277
30,733
25,380

185,390

Notes:

(]

130

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by:

(i) the Group's leasehold land and buildings and construction in
progress with an aggregate net carrying amount at the end
of the reporting period of HK$185,652,000 (2017:
HK$186,640,000) (note 13);

(ii) the Group's investment property with a carrying amount of
HK$6,448,000 (2017: HK$6,484,000) (note 14);

(iii) the Group’s parcels of leasehold land situated in Mainland
China which are classified as prepaid land lease payments
with a carrying amount of HK$4,839,000 (2017:
HK$5,325,000) (note 15); and

(iv) pledged deposits with banks amounting to HK$30,967,000
(2017: HK$31,303,000) (note 21).

Included in the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 were
borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$63,207,000 (2017:
HK$50,432,000) and HK$98,174,000 (2017: HK$116,843,000)
which were denominated in RMB and US$, respectively. All other
bank borrowings were denominated in HK$.

At 31 December 2018, interest rates of the bank borrowings were
either fixed or floating and determined with reference to rates such
as Hong Kong/London Interbank Offered Rate, People’s Bank of
China benchmark lending rate and Standard Chartered Bank Prime
Rate. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings at 31
December 2018 ranged from 3.00% to 6.09%, (2017: from 2.46%
t0 6.54%) per annum.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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B aE

(©

REBETRITERTYA TRBIRERELR

(i) AEEHE L REFRERTIRER  NiREH
R4 R F {85 185,652,000 T (=T —+
£ : 186,640,000 7T) (FiFRE13)

(ii) AN B PR {E 56,448,000 8 T 2 A ME (=
T—+1F :6,484,00087T) (KizE14) :

(iii) AEBERFEAMNEAEHREEER
4,839,000/ 7L (= Z—+4F : 5,325,000 7T) *
HOBRBMLEER (15 &

(iv) B T B 1THF 530,967,000/ T (= F
—-£4 : 31,303,000 7T) (3£ 21) °

RZZT—N\F+ZA=1+—8 " RKITEREEERAES
Bl 63,207,000 7T (= T —+ 4F : 50,432,0005% JT.)
598,174,000 7T (=ZZF —+t4F : 116,843,0007%7T) K
BR(DBIAARE RETHE) ° i HbRITERY
LA TTEHE ©

RZZE—N\F+=A=+—8 ' RIEFIRETHZE
PR B - MRDHIBERE GBIRITRERS - PE
ARBITEEEBERN X REITRITREEN KSR K%
BE -R-ZT—N\E+=-A=1+—0  AEEETER
H)EFI RN F3.00% E6.09% (ZFE—+HF : 2.46% =
6.54%) ©
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25. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25. MEHERMNRIE
The Group leases motor vehicles and certain machinery AEERERERE THEMNEE  AHEEY
and equipment for its operations. These leases are B-ZSHESERAMEME A THBANT—
classified as finance leases and have remaining lease terms FERF -  IEHENERETEREE - B
ranging from one year to five years. All leases are on a ERIAE NG LEM R -
fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments.
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZZE-N\F+A=+—0 ®EHEEETX
payments under finance leases and their present values REEESMFARREREHINWT
were as follows:
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEHENR REHENRRE
2018 2018 2017

Sl == = BRIl —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET TATT TET THETT

Amounts payable: JERTRRIA

Within one year —FR 460 6,591 436

In the second year F_F 460 635 449

In the third to fifth years, FFEEREF

inclusive (BREEEMF) 115 575 114

Total minimum finance HERERENEE

lease payments 1,035 7,801
Future finance charges RREEER (€]9) (208)

Total net finance L& E RN IR A
lease payables Rt 999 7,593

Portion classified as DEAERBEENI D
current liabilities (436) (6.421)

Non-current portion IERENEL D 563 1,172

RESEERERAT
&35 2018
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26.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation

i AER TH

ERERARBENEERFANESHIT

EEBIRRE

allowances
in excess of
related Revaluation Withholding
depreciation of properties taxes Total
EREBRA
BEHAE B EMH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FAT FHAT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+LF
—H—H (19) (3,476) - (3,495)
Deferred tax credited/  REARRIBITA

(charged) to profit or (F1B) RYIREFI TR

loss during the year (FFEE10)

(note 10) 11 (2,218) - (2,207)
Exchange realignment & & 3% = (326) - (326)
At 31 December 2017 RZZT—+4F

and 1 January 2018 +-A=F+—8xR

—E-)N\F
—H—H (8) (6,020) - (6,028)
Deferred tax charged to A A EZR

profit or loss during B R EEF 1B

the year (note 10) (FFzE10) (115) (964) (13,753) (14,832)
Exchange realignment & & % - 311 - 311
At 31 December 2018 R =ZT—/)\4F

+=-A=+—8H (123) (6,673) (13,753) (20,549)

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EIEBLIE (&)
Deferred tax assets BEREBEEE
Depreciation  Provision for Losses
Provision in excess inventories available Other
for accrued of related and trade  for offsetting deductible
staff welfare  depreciation and bills  against future temporary
costs allowance receivables taxable profits differences Total

FERES  THESEAR
ZHETEN FMERBAE  BERWER  ERBER  EfTiH

AARE FERE EREERE <E# BHEZ it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T T

At 1 January 2017 R=E—+F-F—-A 1,700 2,806 1,806 298 1,337 7,947
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ FAERRERETA/(F1B) )

profit or loss during the year EERE (M3 10)

(note 10) 273 243 (36) - 1,687 2,167
Exchange realignment B A% 127 206 124 = 160 617
At 31 December 2017 and R=Z—+F+-A=+-AH

1 January 2018 k=F-\&—f-H 2,100 3,255 1,8% 298 3,184 10,731
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ AERRERE A/ (1) &

profit or loss during the year EIEHIA (e 10)

(note 10) 255 1,159 (61) 252 (111) 1,494
Exchange realignment R A% (107) (190) (80) - (142) (519)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E+=-A=1—H 2,248 4,224 1,753 550 2,931 11,706
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% BRI EFTETUE - B B A S B SN
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign REGCEMBIEEESTRRKR SR - AR
investors from the foreign investment enterprises 10%BENH - RER_ZTZENEF-—HA—HE4E
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective M WEARZEELF+A=+—RHENR
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 A o AR B A B IMREE N R AR T AT
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be B - BIAHREEMTENB R AT - BRANAK
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China EEMTHER5% At - ZERFBERMK T
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, B AR —_TZENF-—HA —BEEEANR
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to ORI B - AEBBAMMWTENT

withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AN B A B AR R A AR S S A PG AR R -
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REKEEZERBRAR
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Shares gl 2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: SETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 f% &% 0.01 B 7T
HK$0.01 each oR=S il 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE
240,000,000 ordinary shares of 240,000,000 fx &% 0.01 7T
HK$0.01 each EoR=S il 2,400
There was no movement in the Company's share capital FA - ARRRABEEE)

during the year.

1 34 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28.
The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 18 November 2014 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten years
from that date.

B AERTE
RRBR BB B ([ %A ) ARE A%
BEBIEFHERNABERSEEIRHUER N E
E e ZAat8n - E—mE+— A+ N \RER - B
FRBEHIER] - BRGHZE R TRk
FAM

AARRES  THAEKTERR - REMRK
HEZBBALTREEABRERESEIIIEHN
TERNOHE - HADEE o Bto > RMERM+ A
HHRE > MARBEERRIBIIFNTES -
HEMEES B ZBEA TR OO TABRE
BN AR B TR EN0.1% » A&
B URBAABRMONE L AR K TE) B85

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associate, is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any grant
of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an BEBTERRRASESRENSFLIE -7
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the AEE -

Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5

million, within any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

REBEREZZENATHARARARARELZ
2HHHEMIIAZ BRAEB M1 BT ZEE
REER - RIBZ R DO EABRENTTE
HhEZERNIEET @ EARESBRERRHE
AT ERTEITE -

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the
Company, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Scheme is determined by the
board of directors in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has
been granted.

BREZTEEHEZTEHBETE - BTHRER
TH&REE (AR A ROV E L BB R
B (AR RRONEZFL BT RS
B2 FHRTHE  RiRHNRHE Bz EE -

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion, but may not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of
grant.

BREMER THEARBRKRESIARRERE

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are

set out in the Company’s Report of the Directors.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 and no share options under the
Scheme were outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and

2017.

EEREZ R -
ARBBREFECESZHBERNARARZE

FEWmE -

BEZ—N\FRZZ—tF+=ZRAR=+—H
IEFE - BERLEAERE  mTR2ZE—N\F
E—ZT—+&+-_A=+—H %2 THER
A HE R ARATIEE o

REKEEZERBRAR
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29. RESERVES 29. f#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements RAFEERENEE  NEBFESHEREE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the T2 5B SR EF 63 N 64 B G AL ES
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 63 = o

and 64 of the financial statements.

Capital reserve EXRFEE

The capital reserve represents the capital contribution from ERNEEEREBLCENEEZ T EBBARK
Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung by way of a REFETIERREAMBENIFZERERS
waiver of shareholders’ loan and the difference between BREE A ERE -

the consideration and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interest acquired.

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. SRR ERERMT
OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing METHELENEESE
activities
Interest-
bearing bank Finance
borrowings lease payables
MEHEE
FFERITHER FERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 185,390 7,593
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRELEH (3,963) (FE1))
Foreign exchange movement HNFE B E (2,888) (56)
At 31 December 2018 R-_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—8H 178,539 999
Interest-
bearing bank Finance
borrowings  lease payables
REHRE
AT RERITER FETRIE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT T
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 210,381 13,048
Changes from financing cash flows MERESTE2E (28,095) (5,989)
Foreign exchange movement BINES=E)) 3,104 534
At 31 December 2017 ER=E1 7 b 185,390 7,593
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEEWH
Details of the Group’s bills payable and bank borrowings, BEANEBREMNER RBTER(UARERS T
which are secured by certain assets of the Group, are BEEKR) NS CoREAGEERBHE
included in note 22 and note 24, respectively, to the MizE 22 R BI5E24 -

consolidated financial statements.

1 36 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. REBESTH
(a) As lessor (@) fERHMEA
The Group leases one of its investment properties AEBREBLCEHELHLHEE —HIEE
(note 14) under an operating lease arrangement, MEMT14)  MEBESHERBR
with the lease negotiated for a term of two years. F - MERFIMEKBPHNRESR -
The terms of the lease also require the tenant to pay
a security deposit.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had REEER - AEBEBEREE P H T H
total future minimum lease receivables under a non- B HERWHARRKIEE LN
cancellable operating lease with its tenant falling due HERWT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —&FR 91 287
In the second to fifth years, inclusive $£-ZFRFE(BIEEERE) = 96
91 383
(b) As lessee (b) fERFEMEA

The Group leases certain of its properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the
properties are negotiated for a term of two years. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

AEERBELEHERHFEARETYE -
MEBELEELSMME - RMEHR
AREERIE A HEH L HE R H AR
REREMNREENDHBEROT

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_E2FRF(BEAEMRF)

REREEZRAERAA
F3R 2018

=
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33. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 32(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

33. &I

RIEHR - B X320 7l EEE
SN REEFIATEARALE

Contracted, but not provided for:
Construction and purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment pi=gs

ERIAVE R

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

138

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions
with a related party during the year:

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THxT THETT

7,608

3. BEEARRE
(a) BZEUBBRHEMTHIFRIRSH &
BER GEBASN - AR B R G 9 BRI R 5 1T
AT S

A related company: 2] /NC I

Rentals paid EfHEE
Note: BfRE
(i) The rentals were charged by Yantek Electronics Company (i)

Limited (“Yantek"”), a related company of the Group owned
as to 33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 34% by Mr. Chan
Yan Wing, who are directors of the Company, and 33% by
Ms. Chan Yan Sam, the sister of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and
Mr. Chan Yan Wing, in accordance with the tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and Yantek.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET

1,656 1,624

HEeBRADBRETERAFT (R (AEE
EREEE R A]) - HERBE LA - BREKEE (K
ERARAER) RRBNWET(RBATER
RBKEEMMIER) DR HEE33%  34% K
33% M4 ) IR IR AN G2 B B BB AT SL TR B s
Bl
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(9

(d)

Other transaction with a related party

A director of the Company received sales commission
of HK$6,598,000 (2017: HK$3,146,000) for his
services provided to the Group during the year based
on 3%-12% (2017: 3%) of the transaction amounts.

Commitments with a related party

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into two
two-year non-cancellable agreements with Yantek
to lease certain office properties and a director
quarter under operating lease arrangements.
The amount of rentals charged for the year is
included in note 34(a)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements. At 31 December 2018, the Group’s total
future minimum lease payments to Yantek falling
due within one year and in the second to fifth
years, inclusive were approximately HK$1,776,000
(2017: HK$1,158,000) and HK$1,280,000 (2017:
Nil), respectively.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

34.

B AR5 (5)
(b) HthSERAHAETHRS

(0

(d)

FRARR—ZEEAMAEERER
HiMmESHEEM£6,598,000E (=%
—+4F 3,146,000 70) * € BEIIRER
54 5M3%-12% (ZF—+ 4 :3%) &t
& o

SR BB 5 Y AR IE

ANEEZE T HE D A B EFT S WD R EF
A R s - AR BRELHERHR
AETHAEWMEREERFS - FARUWEL
2B RHENEA I ERERMEE340)
e RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H &=
EXNFREZARSEBESEE  B—
FERIPERE_ZEEREN(AFER
M) 2S5 BI#A1,776,000 T (=
T — 4+ 4 : 1,158,000 7T ) & 1,280,000
BLT(ZT—tF:F) -

AEETEEEASHNHEE

2017

—E—+tF

HK$'000

T

Short term employee benefits EHEERA 14,060

Post-employment benefits B =T 83
Total compensation paid to key ERFEEEAENHERSE

management personnel 14,143

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The related party transaction in respect of note 34(a)(i)
above also constitutes a continuing connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EENTRARFHOEMFBEHNES
PATEERRPIRES ©

3t B 34(a)() 2 B EE 7T X B TR B AKX BT AR B
FABREZFHEMERS °

REKEEZERBRAR
372018
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
(2017: Loans and receivables):

Trade and bills receivables
Financial assets included in

MBEE

BB AT ENM G EE
“E—+FERXR
YRR -
EE L CeEN L ES
SEATAN IR - Be R EAM

prepayments, deposits FEWGRIEM B 75 & B
and other receivables
Pledged deposits and restricted cash EERERARFZREIRE
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY
Available-for-sale financial asset: Al HEREEE
Available-for-sale investment AHEEERE
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFARMBEER S
other comprehensive income: KIS EEE
Equity instruments designated at BERATESAREMEE
fair value through other Wasm g T A
comprehensive income
Financial liabilities py SR

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade and bills payables
Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Finance lease payables

REHRATIRNF I AIE -
B I RNFRRENER

AR IR R ERT B

B RIE
A RERITHER
BEMSENRIEA

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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35. REHIBINEMIA
EELMTANRERRNERERSIMT :

2018
—2-N\E
HK$"000
Tz

255,704

714
31,621
135,876

423,915

4,119

428,034

124,973
37,995

178,539
999

342,506

2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FHT

240,630

2,973
34,425
72,832

350,860

4,153

355,013

125,636
25,004

185,390
7,593

343,623
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. ERMITEAMAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:

Financial asset BBEE

Available-for-sale investment 7] f H &£ 15E&
Financial asset at fair value 1% AF{EET A

through other Hh 2 E W
comprehensive income KI5 B EE
Financial liabilities BEaE
Finance lease payables R E A E RN RIA
Interest-bearing bank T BERITIE K
borrowings

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash,
trade and bills receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the chief financial officer analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The directors review
the results of the fair value measurement of financial
instruments for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

AEESBTANKEELRATE(RAERE
RNFEAEBENSRTABRINEINT

Carrying amounts Fair values
ARTEE N¥E

2018 2018
E2-N\F =ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERx FERT

999 7,593 1,035 7,766

178,539 185,390 180,044 187,391

179,538 192,983 181,079 195,157

EEECDHE  ReLRSEHEY SEAER
RERHAL  BIFERRFBAREEREE 25
ENRERENRE - StARNFUR - B2 RE
EBRIBENM BEE « st ARMEN TR RE
SAERNMBREN A FEREREERS X
ERASZETIANEHAZNHHARRTE
WAEK e

AEEPHREATREER AR FEFE
MBRRRERF - RERE A - YHAEINTE
MTANEEEY YETHEMAHEIZEA
B BEERFEVBHEEHNERTIALTE
FHEMER -

MBREENBBENAFEDEZTAREBRH
BREFTOTRZ (ETEBREEARBREE)T
PR S BARR © Et R FERBDERAUT
TERMBE

REKBEEZERAERLT
wmoos 141
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. TRITANDATFERAFERERE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest- FTERITERGERBMB s REMREHEN R
bearing bank borrowings and finance lease payables have FEMNFERE - RARBAREERREHRY
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash B RN EBLIRIAIR KB ERE - AE
flows using discount rates that reflect the Group's BB SR RERRRTERTERRENRE
borrowing rates as at the end of the reporting period. The HENTERYORRETEASTEK -

Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank borrowings and finance lease payables as at the end
of the reporting period was assessed to be insignificant.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investment, MIELTRERENATE  AEFEERED®
management of the Group has estimated the fair value of REEMBEEGRENATE BEEEER
the investment using an asset-based approach as its major —EHEBEAMEMNBEREHRIYRERS
asset is a property held for self-use and the investee is yet BFFESAT IHEREMTE - ZWENEED
to have sufficient earning history to support the use of RAEENSEREPARZ NFE  UEEREER
other approaches. The value of this property is adjusted to B RAREEFERRELTE -

its fair value at the end of each reporting period for the
purpose of determining the Group’s share of adjusted net
asset value and fair value of the investment.

Fair value hierarchy REEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIFAEEeMTANRTEFEER

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Fair value measurement using

ERANTHARBNAFEFE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs Total

ERBME 2 EAUEHE BEATTHEHE
wE o ABE BABE st

(Level 1) (Level 2) ((SVEE))

(£—%) (B=#) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T F#& T THET

Asset measured at BAFEFNE
fair value: HWEE :

At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\F
===

Financial asset at fair value R2AFEE A
through other Hth 2 E U ES
comprehensive income BB 75 & B

At 31 December 2017 RZZT—+F

e
Available-for-sale A ERE
investment - - 4,153 4,153
142 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. ERMITEMAFERAFEEBR®)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) N ERBH(E)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the FRAREYURNKREYE 2 A FENKIREIE
investee’s investment property would result in a significant m CRD) 8 EHIELMBRERE 2 AFEKR
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the unlisted equity g3,/ CRd) »

investment.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 REAF=FHNAFEFELEHOT -

during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial asset at fair value through BEAFERFAEMER
other comprehensive income/available- WS BT #E & Bl £
for-sale investment — unlisted: HE®RE — L :
At 1 January n—HA—H 3,773
Fair value gains recognised in other REAL 2 E R = ERH
comprehensive income N ERER 111
Exchange realignment bE A 269
At the end of year FR 4,153
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at RZE—NF+_A=+—BR_ZT—+F+=
fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December R=+—8  AEBWEEMZRA T AT S8
2017. BafE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA - RMBEENS - E—REFE _F 2B
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BELNTEAENEYR  BS=RTEEASHE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2017: H(ZZE—+F )
Nil).

RESEERERAT
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. TRMIANDAFERATFERERE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RREBR (&)

Fair value measurement using
FEAUTHASEBNAFERE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
HEWE  EATBRE EXFTATEER
HE WAHE WA BB
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—%) (B=%%) (B=%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET

Liabilities for which fair HEAFEMNEE :
values are disclosed:

At 31 December 2018 MN_E—N\F

+=Z—HA=+—H
Finance lease payables BAMHE RN FIE 1,035 1,035
Interest-bearing bank FTEIRITIER
borrowings 180,044 180,044

181,079 181,079

At 31 December 2017 RZTE—+F

+t=—A=t+—"~
Finance lease payables BETE & FEN FRIE = = 7,766 7,766
Interest-bearing bank sHEIRITER
borrowings - - 187,391 187,391
- - 195,157 195,157
144 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's cash and time deposits at banks and borrowings
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on deposits with banks and floating
rate borrowings). There is no impact on the Group's equity
except on the retained profits.

37.

BEREREREBRERBE

FEEIESRTIAERRNELE

ZK%I%@IE:FEE’JI%HF“%TU%ELF@ L
KRk FERREADESRR ZEFSEH
MRBALEE EE%IEEZ%HBMH’JBZ% %
BRI

T =2 7 B
MEREDESMIANRKRRESREFET
BREREMEBHNERE - AEBEREGIEFX
EHEAKRTITEAANERNRITEESEERER
MZEERER -

TRIRAEEGRBADEN (RRTHEREIER
ERNFE)HMNEHIRSE A e FE (KA
ﬁ“"’%(i’ﬁ—*me)E’J@(Wﬁ o BRIREE MM - A
SERESHESZER

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax

HEpwen, BR%E A A
(Ra)  #i CGRd)

HK$'000
THxT
2018 —E—_N\F
HK$ BT
RMB AR
HK$ /%71:
RMB AR
2017 —E—+F
HK$ BT 50 (306)
RMB AR 50 (105)
HK$ BT (50) 306
RMB AR (50) 105
BEEEERERAR
wmo0is 14D
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Those
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s main operating subsidiaries are located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and the Group's sales and
purchases were mainly conducted in HK$, RMB and US$.

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future
exchange rates of the RMB could vary significantly from
the current or historical exchange rates as a result of the
changes in the PRC foreign currency policy. The exchange
rates may also be affected by economic developments and
political changes domestically and internationally, and the
demand and supply of the RMB. The appreciation or
devaluation of RMB against HK$ and US$ may have impact
on the operating results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair values of monetary assets and liabilities). There is
no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

BREMEEREREE®)

A= B

SMERBAEEREERZEERR - ZERRIR
VEEEMUZEMNINEEB A EEE
TEE AEENIZLEMNBRRNEER
hEANM  MARENEEEZNET - ARK
R ETUHET

ARBAIEA R A LA - ARBERARKERRA]
BEE AT BEIMNERKE M E R ATSBEEX
BRAEA o R IR 88X BRSNS A3 R R I
SRRBUEARBNERATE - AREHIET
RETHEXREXSHARBE 2REXEE
REE

TRINFNBREMRAEERB AN (AT
BERABATENED) BARBEXHRE
EREEE (RMOMBEBERTE)NBRE -
BRREEMIN  AREREHEITE -

profits.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
RMB rate before tax
ARBER MRBE AR
EHACFER) i CR2)
% HK$°000
% FERT
2018 —E—N\F
If HK$ weakens against RMB A TT AR T K (€))
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WE TR ARE EFF 3
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARE TR (602)
If US$ strengthens against RMB fMETHARE EFA 602
2017 —E— 1t
If HK$ weakens against RMB i 7T 7 AR EE T Bk 5 (3)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB AT H AR EH (5) 3
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETEARE T K 5 (347)
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHARE EH (5) 347
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December
2018. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

Mg b EE B R R BUR (8)

EE RS
R-BE-NE+-A=+—HHNEERABRK
ERMEE

TRBETIR - Z—)/\F+_A=+—H0 ERK

SEEERRNEEERLERN &SRR (X
ZENBEZMER - BRIFAEMBALETL
BERAIBEINATRER) RFERERIE - 2
SIS BAMBEEMREAE -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
HH
FEESE 2HAHEEES
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach
PEER 1 PEER2 PEER3 fEbE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FHT FHT FHIT
Trade and bills receivables* B IR IR
&S - - - 259,543 259,543
Financial assets included in STATENRUE - e
prepayments, deposits and N E A FE Y TRIAEY
other receivables MBEE
— Normal** = MIERF =2 714 = = = 714
Pledged deposits and EHEATER R
restricted cash IR HI3R &
— Not yet past due — RmH 31,621 - - - 31,621
Cash and cash equivalents REeRREEEBY
— Not yet past due — K@ 135,876 - - = 135,876
168,211 - - 259,543 427,754
& For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the * FLAN &= B FE PR RS A VE R E R0 B 5 e U k08 1 R AR 22 4%

simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

e The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group'’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures and payment in advance may be
required. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

ME - AR TR SRR R 19 P ER o B f AR e

o st ATRNEOR - 28 REMEKFENS B EEL R
B AREENBETXENBEAENEERR B M6
RAREEEE N - AEGERERWREIER] - BRIl
ZENBEENEEERKRE 7] -

REB—tHE+ZA=+-HWBEAR
AEEERERAREERINE=ZTRS ° K
SENBERREENERREENRSINEFPA
RIEERERF XA REHEERLMNN - #to
REEFEEREUGIRRE

REKEEZERBRAR
swo0s 147
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade and bills receivables, pledged deposits and
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 46.6%
(2017: 43.4%) and 68.4% (2017: 74.9%) of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. The Group’s policies are to regularly
monitor the current and expected liquidity requirements,
and to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and available banking facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in short and longer terms.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

7. BEREEREREE®)

EEmRbE (&)
AEBEMBEEE(BRESREFEBEREBKRE
& BEERERERZRHRE R RBSFE
Y EFIAFENFIA - e A BRI 2 8175
BE)NEERBRNREF RN  sARRRE
EERZETEMNREMA -

BREF/HFHEREEEFRERK - RREH
K AEEBEETEEETRAR  AALASERE
WESREBREREREEF 5515 46.6%

TE—tF 1 43.4%) ®%68.4% (=T —+tF:
74.9%) B AEBEARAARRF -

REBHR SRR

AEBEMBEBEAMNBRITEREFESNFE
MHEBEER M2 T - ARENBRAERERSE
BRFEMRBESER  URREERSTHRES
FEERATARITRE - WnRRPRRRBERDE

AEBNFEIMRRIEA QKRR ROT
BEZEMRRT

(o])] Less than 1to5

demand 1 year years
BRERBE IR-F —FIF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TER TER

2018 —E-N\F
Trade and bills payables B AR FERENER 124,973 124,973
Financial liabilities included in FTAEMENRIEREE R
other payables and accruals B aE - 37,995 37,995
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &+ ESRITIER 62,511 117,533 180,044
Finance lease payables &M S EN R - 460 1,035
62,511 280,961 344,047
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. B EREBREEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REVRE R ()
On Less than 1t05
demand 1 year years Total
RERER OR—F —ELF st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TEL THET THT

2017 ZE—tF
Trade and bills payables ZHRENFAERENER = 125,636 = 125,636
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A B Ath & 7008 & fE A+ &

payables and accruals N HEaE = 25,004 = 25,004
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B IRITIER 87,774 97,829 - 185,603
Finance lease payables BEMRE RN FHIE = 6,591 1,210 7,801

87,774 255,060 1,210 344,044

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are term AERITERPRREHER  HERBETE
loans of which the loan agreements contain a repayment EAREERKER 2GR - 4 T IRIT RGN A
on-demand clause giving the banks the unconditional right PMERIR R W E SR - Eit - 5t it 2 EAAR R
to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the T RERDNEELEA RERERER] -
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”.
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not ARBA LG EFXTHEEZEXGHEK
believe that the loans will be called in their entirety within RT-EARARARHRER  MESRAEZEREIKR
12 months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid EXRmEH BB EE - LB EZEERE
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the xR AEERMEBRREES B 2B
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering: S WEEAEM - RANKE S AT — B R AR
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval FRIKEFER - RIEBFEARESKERERZER
of the financial statements; the lack of events of default, MG ETRBREERETIGERZZE  BiF
and the fact that the Group has made all previously BEIAARBIANR  ZFERNREEARE 25
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the HIERWT -

terms of the loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

Less than
1year 1tob5 years Total
DR—F —ZHF A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

As at 31 December 2018 e SEE—= \E=m T S ar— = 35,764 29,976 65,740
As at 31 December 2017 REE et B = —E 34,392 58,341 92,733
REKEERERAT
£3%5 2018 1 49
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or
raise new capital from its investors. The Group is required
to comply with certain externally imposed capital
requirements set out in certain of its bank loan
agreements/bank facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings and finance lease

37.

HEEREERZREBEK (&)

EXEE
AEBEEEANTIREBNARERNEE#R
FEQERN  URARRNEARLE » A
EBRFREARRER -

AEBRBKBERAESMELEANR %&{’E
HAE - BERRABERRE - AEERRE
ENTERROKEXAREEEEMNES - $‘$
E/RESE TIRITERRE RITBE SRR
SIMETIMNEEMAERRE - RBEEZF—N\
Ft+_A=t—HBR-Z—tF+A=1+—
RIEEE EBEANBR BRIBEFHESE
) o

REBZREEBEL X (AMEEBTRNEER)
ERER - HEBBEASRITERRRERSE
FEfTRIE -

RBMERRZEEAGBLRHIINT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FHET

178,539 185,390
999 7,593

179,538 192,983

511,653 480,420

0.4 0.4

payables.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEERITER
Finance lease payables REEMHE R IR
Total debt BB
Total equity R
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE
1 50 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR RHHAMRR K

THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investment in a subsidiary

FRBEE
R—FEHBRRNRE

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Due from subsidiaries RIS NGIE s
Prepayments TE R

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBeEEY
Total current assets MENEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBBE

Other payables and accruals
Due to a subsidiary

HAb e 5RR N B E T B
e —EIF B 2 B 508

Total current liabilities mEN B EERE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY e

Issued capital BEBITRA
Reserves (note) ()
Total equity RS

2018
—E-N\fF
HK$'000
FHET

66,518
266
274

67,058

1,432
9,966

11,398

55,660

55,661

2,400
53,261

55,661

RESEERERAT
&35 2018

RIMERRARBDFHERRROER T -

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

65,866
412
336

66,614

1,129
5,561

6,690
59,924
59,925

2,400
SIS

59,925
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38.

THE COMPANY (continued)

ARATMBEMRRE (@)

Note: B3 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREEBRZENT -
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Total
RERER Sy i #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+F—HF—H 62,609 (1,219) 61,390
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAFBRBREZAEEETE
for the year - (3,865) (3,865)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-ZE—+F+_A=+—8K
—Z—-N\F—A—H 62,609 (5,084) 57,525
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year 4 RE1E &% 2 HE B4 - (4,264) (4,264)
At 31 December 2018 R=F—-N\F+=ZA=+—H 62,609 (9,348) 53,261
39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39, #t&BI 8%

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2019.

1 52 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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